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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights

MBRE
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t=-RA=+—-HLHEE

2019 2018 Change
—E-NF —E-N\F g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Revenue I = 8,362,722 9,544,418 -12.4%
Gross profit EA 1,015,386 1,055,022 -3.8%
Profit for the year NF i F 127,533 127,140 +0.3%
Profit attributable to [SYNEIEZF PN 132,586 106,418 +24.6%
owners of the parent FEAG & T
Basic earnings per share, G EAZF| 0.10 0.08 +25.0%
in RMB (AR®T)
Profit attributable to
Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year owners of the parent
Wz EF REEFERF B AREE AEERF
ARA T e AR TR AR TR
12,000,000 1,500,000 150,000 150,000
132,586
127,140 127,533
10,000,000 0,544,418
1,200,000 120,000 120,000
8,362,722 1,055,022 ERET 106,418
8,000,000 ’ 2
900,000 90,000 90,000
6,000,000
600,000 60,000 60,000
4,000,000
300,000 30,000 30,000
2,000,000
0 0 0 0
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
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Financial Highlights B35

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB132.6 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.10 (2018: RMBO0.08),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,357,521,666 (2018: 1,357,431,128) in issue during the
year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0
cents for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK2.0
cents). The Company had not declared and paid any interim
dividend or special dividend during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
18 May 2020.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 1 June 2020 to Wednesday, 3 June 2020 (both
days inclusive), for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to receive the final dividend, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
receiving the final dividend, shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar (see below) for registration by no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 29 May 2020.

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), | hereby present the
Group’s report on its annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “Period”) for shareholders’ review.

Challenges in 2019

2019 has been a challenging year to the Group. During
the year, the Group experienced challenges from various
fronts including the overall global deceleration in growth
which afflicted global business performance as a whole, the
slowdown and/or delay in 5G network construction caused
by the global economic downturn, and the decline in sales
of automobile among the global auto market, especially in
the two major markets, China and the US. In addition, the
unusual surge in the PRC lead price brought forward from
2018 and the Sino-US trade war have brought additional
colors to these challenges.

Looking back at 2019, the global economy slumped to
merely 2.3% of growth, the lowest level in the past 10 years
as a result of protracted trade disputes and a slowdown
in the PRC investment. Among advanced economies,
the weakening has been broad based, affecting major
economies and smaller Asian advanced economies, even
more pronounced across emerging markets. The US
continued to impose tariff on China during the year, striking
market demand of afflicted industries to a further extent.

The recession in macro economy weighted much pressure
on telecommunication operators internationally and caused
deceleration in the overall progress of global 5G network
development, which affected the demand in power supply
solutions for the purposes of 5G network construction.
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During the period, the global auto market was sluggish
with sales in major auto markets such as China, US and
Japan simultaneously declined, representing a year-on year
decrease of 8.2%, 2% and 1% respectively, posting a threat
to auto parts and accessories players across the board
including the Group.

The unusual surge in the PRC lead price since 2018 had
prolonged its negative effect to the Group during the first half
of 2019 but a more stabilized pricing trend prevailed during
the second half of 2019.

During the period, the lithium-ion battery industry continued
to consolidate with many sizeable players collapsed and
liquidated during the course of 2019, demonstrating the
growing competitive landscape of the industry. However, the
Group saw chances and opportunities out of this trend as it
is the right time to bottom fish and absorb valuable resources
to the Group.

Development in 2019

Consistently over the past ten years, Leoch has remained the
largest network lead-acid battery supplier in China covering
the world with a well-balanced local and overseas sales
ratio, and we expect to continue to be so by and through
our international offices and warehouses all across the globe
from South Africa to North America, and from East Asia to
West Europe & EMEA.

To cope with increasing international product enquiries and
quality demand, the group has streamlined its business,
marketing & sales, production, R&D and logistic functions to
arrive at a slimmer, more integrated and linear internal value
chain with higher efficiency in overall turnaround time and
accuracy in shooting market demand, while delivering in a
more cost effective manner. For instance, the catalog shelf
was slimmed down to carry around 1800 most up to date
and cutting edge best-selling models to boost per model
yield.
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Chairman’s Statement EfE#HsE

The new lithium-ion battery business infrastructure has been
fully constructed during the year under review with test run
successfully undergone. This has equipped the group to get
set for the upcoming 5G orders which are expected to start
crystallizing in 2020.

Also delivered on schedule is the new production facility in
Vietnam which has topped up the overall production capacity
of the group by nearly 5%.

In order to measure up with top international standards in all
aspects, the Group has installed a few additional functional
divisions internally during the year. The Risk Control &
Prosecution Division was set up to safeguard the general
interests of the Group covering all tangible and intangible
assets from IP to working capital, and even personal security
during this very season of COVID-19.

It is our belief that only when each and every of our over
13,000 employees, whereas each of them is an important
cluster of the bigger us, continue to upgrade himself with
cutting-edge industrial knowledge and relevant skills of his
trade with well balanced personal development, will the
bigger us — the Group, continue to leap forward from time to
time. As such, a compulsory continuous training system is
set in place to encourage and monitor the learning progress
of each of us.

Prospect

As the COVID-19 pandemic spirals upward, disruptions to
the global economy are increasing. Goldman Sachs has
cut its global GDP growth forecast to 1.25 per cent for the
year as the world officially marches into recession, though
the depth and magnitude are currently expected to be less
severe than the deep recessions of 1981-82 and 2008-
09, but worse than the mild recessions of 1991 and 2001.
The Group, along with many other players in the industry
and other industries, will expect unprecedented head on
challenges.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Since the outbreak of the pandemic in China, usage for
online data & services have substantially reduced, as China
Mobile reviewed recently that the average revenue per user,
sales, online usage and voice usage including international
roaming have dropped materially. It has scaled back capital
expenditure in 5G base station infrastructure, and so have
China Unicom and China Telecom. The Group will take this
as a motivational challenge and continue to improve both
its product quality and customer service to stay afloat these
revised 5G capex plans.

To capture timely opportunities by diversification, the Group
has commenced production of lithium-ion batteries in Anhui.
It is expected that the lithium-ion battery production capacity
will be increased to 1.8GWh during the year and from that to
4GWh gradually over the next few years.

On the matter of production base, the Group will leverage
on the newly developed production base in Vietnam to fully
counter the US tariff effect for US export. Products for the
US market will be produced in Vietnam this year onwards.
This will save considerable amount of tariffs while running at
a comparatively lower level of production cost and overhead
than the domestic plants in China, thereby bringing two
dimensional benefits to the Group.

In accordance with the new environmental compliance
requirements put forward by the Chinese government in
2018, the Group has updated its facilities and reopened its
lead recycling business for test run at the beginning of 2020,
with the production capacity to be increased twofold the
original size in due course. The Group will continue to seek
opportunities to further develop the lead recycling business.

Backed by 20 years of experience in providing reliable and
innovation battery solutions for a broad range of industries
around the world and with our growth strategy in both the
mainland and overseas markets in place, we are prudently
positive and confident on our future performance in the
foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement EfE#HsE

Commitment & Acknowledgement

2019 kicked off the 10th year that the Company has
obtained its listing status on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. As | have previously pointed out in our first
Chairman Statement, our aim is to provide customers with
products of competitive prices, reliable quality, timely delivery
and comprehensive services. Efforts have been recognized
and reflected in our sales growth over the last decade. As
usual and consistent with before, we will continue to promote
our corporate image, and to increase our customer’s
satisfactory level to further enhance and solidify our world-
class status.

In the coming years, we will continue to focus and invest in
relevant technology and products while increasing production
capacity and flexibility to cater for the ever-changing and
upgrading of client’s demand from time to time, from east to
west and from north to south.

The history of the group was written by each and every
of our loyal and diligent management and employees. On
behalf of the Board of Directors, | am sincerely grateful for the
contributions of all of them, as well as the continuous support
and trust of our shareholders and other key stakeholders.

| have said it in 2010, and | am saying it again quoting
Dr. Sun Yatsen: “I will pursue my ambitions without any
hesitation, and will work towards the goal unyieldingly”. We
will continue to work diligently with dedicated efforts in the
international battery platform; in hay days as in challenging
moments.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB8,362.7 million,
representing a decrease of 12.4% from RMB9,544.4 million
for the corresponding period in 2018.

During the Period, revenue from batteries (and related items)
business amounted to RMB7,386.5 million, representing
a decrease of 8.5% from RMB8,069.1 million for the
corresponding period in 2018. The drop in revenue was
partially contributed by the decrease in average lead price of
2019 which resulted in lower average selling price per ton as
compared to that of 2018. The volume delivered in terms of
tons was similar as compared to the corresponding period
last year. Revenue from recycled lead business amounted to
RMB971.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
31.6% from RMB1,419.1 million for the corresponding period
in 2018.

Several macro and micro factors collectively afflicted the
continuous growth of the overall revenue and margins of the
Group during the year. The US-China trade war continued to
afflict China domestic and exports in general as well as the
overseas business of the Group in the US. The improvement
of gross profit margin in batteries business was diluted by
low profit margin recycling business resulted in slightly more
than 1% improvement.

Reserve power batteries

The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB3,913.1 million (2018: RMB4,436.9
million), representing an decrease of 11.8% as compared
to the same period of last year. This accounted for
approximately 53.0% of the total revenue from batteries sales
as compared to 55.0% in 2018. The decrement in sales
revenue of reserve power batteries amounted to RMB523.8
million (2018: RMB237.3 million decrement) during the
Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis BI2RE 1wk D

The decrease was attributable mainly to the fall back in
demand of lead-acid batteries from the telecommunication
market in the PRC. 2019 has been a year of preparation
and transition for the Group following the 4G/5G transition
roadmap. While the PRC government imposed policy to
utilize retired lithium batteries from electric vehicle and the
trend will continue at the telecommunication market, the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (“MIIT”)
announced the 5G licensing decision not at the beginning
of the year, but in June, 2019, leaving not much room
of real business for the Group to capture during the year
due to product development lead time in response to the
announcement.

Despite the overall telecom market challenges in 2019, we
have managed to further diversify and conquer new clients
from other sub-sectors of the network power market. In
getting ready to capture the most of the opportunities from
the rising 5G life cycle, the Group has, during the year,
headhunted various industrial veterans from the telecom and
relevant industry sector to pave way for the 5G boom as
telecom operators roll out their plans of capital expenditure.

SLI batteries

Sales of SLI batteries for the Group during the year
amounted to RMB2,470.5 million (2018: RMB2,542.1
million), representing a decrease of 2.8% as compared to
the same period last year. This accounted for approximately
33.4% of the total revenue from batteries sales as compared
to 31.5% in 2018. The decrement in sales revenue of SLI
batteries amounted to RMB71.6 milion (2018: RMB377.4
million increment) during the Period.
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Fitch Ratings economics team expected global car sales to
fall by over 3 million in 2019. Sales in China fell 8.2% year-
on-year in particular. Weak credit growth, a rise in used car
sales and new emissions standards depressed new car sales
in China. Likewise, environmental concerns about diesel cars,
anticipated regulatory responses and the growth of ride-
hailing and car-pooling practices are weighing on demand
in the U.S. as GM, Ford and Honda have all cut back on
production. Our SLI export business fell back during the year
along the trend.

To counter these negative effects brought by the surrounding
economic and business environment and the change of
consumer car using and purchasing habits & preferences,
the Group paid heavy attention on its advertising mix
internationally which included various important online and
off-line media coverages, conferences & training, and regular
meetings with over 400 agents across China.

Despite the drop in global demand across the industry in
2019, we managed to expand our list of reputable clients/
projects internationally by securing orders from new names
such as China Greatwal/BMW, BYD, Nio, Mitsubishi, Volvo
and Shanghai Automobile/Ford.

During the year, the Group continued to upkeep its standard
in quality and has received various recognition from clients.
Among them are “2019 Excellent Supplier Award” from
Dongfeng Peugeot Citroen Automobile Company Ltd.,
“Golden Wing Award of China Auto Parts Industry — Top
Five National Famous Brands of Reserve Power Battery”,
“2019 Carsf Annual Award on Auto Parts Brand: Distributors
Preferred Brand Award”, and “2019 Excellent Supplier
Award” from SAIC-GM, just to name a few.
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Motive power batteries

During the Period, motive power batteries business (which
includes but not limited to applications in electric vehicles,
electric forklifts and other battery-driven products) of the
Group recorded sales revenue of RMB833.9 million (2018:
RMB871.6 million), representing a decrease of 4.3% as
compared to last year. This accounted for approximately
11.3% of the total revenue from batteries sales as compared
to 10.8% in 2018. The decrement in sales revenue of
motive power batteries amounted to RMB37.7 million (2018:
RMB374.6 million increment) during the Period.

To improve sales channel efficiency, the Group partnered
with various local agents and distributors in over 261 cities
in China via over 50,000 end client points of sales during the
year and will continue to do so in 2020.

Recycled lead

Revenue from the sales of recycled lead products amounted
to RMB971.2 million (2018: RMB1,419.1 million) during the
year under review, representing a decrease of 31.6% as
compared to last year. To comply with the lead-related heavy
metal discharging enterprises structural reform set forth by
the PRC Government, the Group decided to expand and
upgrade its production infrastructure as well as to improve
the environment protection measures concerned starting
from the third quarter of 2018 which was subsequently
completed in the fourth quarter of 2019. Accordingly,
production was temporary put on hold. Revenue from re-
cycle lead products being recorded for the year were from
trading of recycle lead with very low gross profit margin.
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Sales network

The Group maintained to distribute its products to more
than 100 countries and regions across the world and has
established regional sales offices in Beijing, Shenzhen,
Zhaoqging, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia,
Australia and other ASEAN countries, India, Sri Lanka,
USA and the EU, and United Kingdom. Together with the
domestic sales centers in the PRC, the Group has more
than 80 sales offices and centers around the world. As at 31
December 2019, the Group has over 750 dedicated sales
and marketing and related supporting employees.

Research and development ("R&D’) of new products

During the year under review, the Group continued to work
closely with international and domestic battery experts
and research institutions to perform research on new
technologies and develop new products. These products
include product series such as AGM VRLA batteries, VRLA-
GEL battery, pure lead batteries, UPS high rate batteries,
marine batteries, railway batteries, start-stop batteries,
automotive batteries, motorcycle batteries, OPzV, OPzS,
PzS, PzV and PzB tubular plate batteries, golf cart batteries,
scrubber sweeper batteries and electric vehicle batteries
etc. In an attempt to boost model yield, to increase
overall running efficiency, and to save unnecessary cost of
maintenance of carrying a bulky catalog, the catalog shelf
was slimmed down to carry around 1800 most up to date
and cutting edge best-selling models.

A new lithium-ion battery R&D team is now in full gear, rolling
out new lithium-ion products tailor-made for applications in
each of the network power and motive market segment,
while setting itself ready for the 5G momentum.
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During the year, we collaborated with Gridtential Energy Inc.
with an objective to develop a new series of greener, saver
and more cost effective models of the latest generation of
advanced lead-acid battery with density of five times of that
of prevailing traditional lead-acid battery. New models are
expected to rollout for test run purpose during the year 2020.

As at December 31, 2019, our battery R&D team of the
Group consists of more than 350 researchers and related
development & sampling technicians. The Group also owns
433 patents, with another 114 pieces in the process of
patent application as at the date of this annual report.

Production Base Along the One-Belt-One-Road Trajactory

During the year, the Group finished constructing two new
plants in Vietham and has completed the pre-bulk production
test run for both the network power plant with motorcycle
battery production line and the automotive battery plant. The
designed production capacity of these two factories will be
more than double of the current total overseas production
capacity with rooms for future expansion.

Also happened during the year is the expansion of
production capacity in the India plant of the Group. As India
is considered a promised land for regional and global market
growth for many industries especially during the last decade,
our India plant has been upgraded to provide rooms to
deliver more than twice the quantity of batteries per annum
to clients in the region, as compared to 3,000 tons of limited
capacity at the end of 2018.

Back in China, the construction of the lithium-ion batteries
plant has been completed in December 2019 at Huaibei
Development Zone of Anhui. The total site area is
approximately 150,000 square meters, 30% of which is
currently in use to provide an annual capacity of 1.8GWh
of lithium-ion battery products which will be expanded into
4GWh gradually in due course. The remaining 70% area
provides room for future expansion in next phase.
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As mentioned earlier under the paragraph “Recycle Lead”,
the Group has completed upgrading and enlarging the
production infrastructure for recycle lead products during
the year to produce greener products with higher quantity.
Maximum production quantity is limited to 200,000
tons according to the approved quota assigned by the
government.

Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major party of the product cost for the
Group’s battery production. According to Shanghai Metals
Market (“SMM”), the monthly average lead price per ton
fluctuated within the range of RMB15,270 to RMB17,958
during the year under review, representing a change within
the range of —-18.1% to —-3.7% as compared with December
2018 SMM monthly average of RMB18,649 per ton.

The monthly average of SMM lead price in each of the last six
months of 2019 was RMB16,235, RMB16,698, RMB17,085,
RMB16,822, RMB15,936 and RMB15,270 respectively and
shows a downward trend at the last quarter of the Period.

To cope with the potential pricing risk associated with the
fluctuation in future lead price, the Group has adopted
a price-linked pricing mechanism to minimize lead price
exposure. In addition, a hedging function group has been
set up during the fourth quarter of the year with professional
commodities trading veterans to take charge of future raw
materials procurement and price hedging for the Group.
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Future Prospects

Following the outbreak of COVID-19 during the first quarter
of 2020, the pandemic has widely spread across the ocean
from China, crossing both the Atlantic and Pacific Ocean
reaching North America and Europe. According to the former
IMF chief economists, the world economy has fallen into
recession, suffering from a “wicked cocktail” of COVID-19
and the dramatic action to limit its spread. Negative effects
are predicted to eat into both the first half and second half
of 2020. Among the big three economies, US and Europe
will see negative growth, while Chinese growth is expected
to come in at a paltry 1.5 per cent according to Bank of
America BofA. Goldman Sachs research team has cut global
GDP forecast for 2020 down to 1.25%. Morgan Stanley is
seeing a global growth slipping to 0.9%, while Deutsche
Bank has predicted the most severe quarterly GDP decline
in the first two quarters of 2020 since WWII, with the GDP
of China going down for more than 30% in each of these
quarters.

The virus outbreak has put a halt in production for us in
China for one whole month during the first quarter of 2020,
while overall factory activity in China dropped 13.5 percent
year-on-year last month from February 2019. Since resuming
full operation in March, we have been able to orderly catch
up with production. Considering the objective economic
environment, with facts such as the ploughing of over
USD 10 billion into China’s government bond by offshore
investors, cascaded redemption at the equity market, and
the worst expected drop in history since the 1929 Great
Depression of S&P 500 since its all time high in February
this year, we will waltz along soberly paying extra attention
to the changing macro and micro situations and revise our
strategies as and when situation calls for.
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5G & Reserve Power Products

The MIT announced the issuance of 5G licenses and
allocated spectrum in China back in June of 2019, which
points to the direction of the adoption of both SA macro base
stations as well as micro-base stations. It is estimated that
capital expenditure in 5G infrastructure will climb gradually
from 2020 and peak at around 2022-2024. According to the
consensus of various analysts covering the telecom sector
before the outbreak of the pandemic earlier this year, China
would put in a total between 600,000 to 800,000 stand-
alone (SA) macro base stations during 2020, possibly with
the combination of various micro-cells, Pico, Femto and
large scale antennas systems (LSAS) which collectively
weight a much heavier loading on the demand on back-
up power system and creates a promising outlook for the
battery sector players. Such estimation was scaled down to
500,000-600,000 recently after telecom operators in China
substantially reduced their 2020 capital expenditure budget
on 5G infrastructure after the outbreak of COVID-19.

Along with the 5G official launch is the announcement by
MIIT of its decision to have both 4G and 5G running parallel
concurrently for at least ten years. Against this backdrop,
telecom operators are expected to further increase its capital
spending in 4G system enhancement in due course.

According to Mr. Yu Qingjiao of Secretary General of
Zhongguancun New Battery Technology Innovation Alliance
(PREANFEEBRMA B BEMWMEZR), lithium-iron-
phosphate (LFP) battery is considered to be the most
suitable type among all types of lithium-ion batteries for
deployment in 5G base station environment, whereas LFP
is a well-researched and developed product of the Group.
It is also understood that in 2019 alone, China Tower has
procured to purchase a substantial amount of batteries,
paving way for a continuous path of spending of all operators
and infrastructure providers within the sector over the next
few years. Having positioned itself on the right product path,
the Group will stand a chance along the trajectory of the 5G
roadmap in the long run.
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To get prepared for this opportunity, the Group has finished
constructing its brand new lithium-ion battery plant in Anhui
with a capacity of 4GWh altogether. Upon full installation of
plant & equipment by the second or third quarter of 2020, it
will provide ground for producing up to 1.8GWh of lithium-
ion products, with more rounds of additions of plant and
equipment for the remaining 2.2GWh to come during next
phases of development.

SL/ batteries

The global auto industry plunged deeper into recession in
2019, with sales dropping more than 4% as carmakers
struggled to find buyers in China and India. The pain has
already expanded into 2020 given the prevailing pandemic
environment which has and will continue to cause disruption
in both supply and demand side numbers. As Bloomberg
reported, sales in China in February alone has dropped 80%
month on month from January this year.

Switching to Vietnam, our newly set up plants along the
One-Belt-One-Road pathway creates hope in darkness
as the industry marches into a recessionary 2020. It offers
a relatively lower cost base production environment than
other production bases and as such, it offers rooms for
further price slashing in times of recession as a lifeline buffer
to enable the Group to stay afloat. Furthermore, exports
from Vietnam to the US is tariff free, whereas such tariff has
swallowed a large part of the profit margin of the Group for
each of 2018 and 2019. Besides, with the full operation of
the Vietnam plants in 2020, it is expected that margin loss
as a result of SMM & LME lead price fluctuation will not
resurface indefinitely.
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Motive power batteries

The demand for motive power batteries has always been
driven by extensive application in electric transportation and
equipment such as low-speed electric vehicles and electric
forklifts in the PRC. Low-speed electric vehicles as commuter
tools to solve the transportation demand between county
and township is the most favorable solution nowadays.
The current low-speed electric vehicle market has 5 million
vehicles and was expected to reach 10 million by 2020
with battery market size reaching RMB8.4 billion before the
outbreak of the COVID-19. The Group will react with extra
caution towards market change as a result, as well as the
consequential changes in consumer behavior and pattern of
purchase of clients.

International Market

Leveraging on the well-built international brand name of
Leoch and the acquisition of a UK trading company together
with the establishment of a trading subsidiary in each of
France, Germany and ltalia, the Group will continue to
develop and expand its market share overseas to capture the
5G and energy storage system (ESS) market in the mid to
long run.
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Recycled Lead

The structural reform promulgated by the PRC government
to provide a greener manufacturing environment with stricter
environmental protection requirements had effectively
squeezed out many below standard and smaller operators
and resulted in an industry-wide consolidation in favour of the
Group. Expanded capacity has basically been approved by
the respective government bodies subject to due inspection
by the Taihe County People’s Government. Various
compliance approvals will be obtained before the re-opening
of the plant. Production has been test run at the beginning
of 2020. Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 inspection
has been rescheduled to April 2020 and full operation is
expected to start in May 2020. Based on the new designed
production capacity, maximum annual output can reach
200,000 tons with production running at full capacity.

Financial Review

For the Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB8,362.7 million, representing a decrease of 12.4% from
RMB9,544.4 million for the corresponding period in 2018.
The profit for the year amounted to RMB127.5 million for
the Period as compared to RMB127.1 million for the year
ended 2018, of which the profit attributable to the owners
of the parent amounted to RMB132.6 million as compared
to RMB106.4 million for the corresponding period in 2018.
Basic earnings per share for the Period was RMB0.10 (2018:
RMBO0.08).

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from battery business decreased
by 8.5% from RMB8,069.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB7,386.5 million for the Period.

The Group’s revenue from recycled lead products decreased
by 31.6% from RMB1,419.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB971.2 million for the Period due to
the delay in resumption of full operation.
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Details of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 MU TNAREEREHZE T NFh-_Z—NFt+_-
December 2019 and 2018 by product category are set out A =+—H I FEIRE BB E| DU ERAA :
below:

2019 2018
“EZ-nF “E-0\E

Percentage  Percentage Percentage
Revenue share decrease Revenue share
Product category EmER WE  FEEAL A =E Wz MBS

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETTT AREFTT
Reserve power batteries HRER 3,913,062 46.8% (11.8%) 4,436,853 46.5%
SLI batteries REE 2,470,539 29.5% (2.8%) 2,642,113 26.6%
Motive power batteries BhEHN 833,851 10.0% (4.3%) 871,582 9.1%
Others Hit 169,054 2.0% (22.6%) 218,540 2.3%
Sub-total NGt 7,386,506 88.3% (8.5%) 8,069,088 84.5%
Recycled lead products Bl SR E T 971,227 11.6% (31.6%) 1,419,052 14.9%
Others Hity 4,989 0.1% (91.1%) 56,278 0.6%
Total G 8,362,722 100% (12.4%) 9,544,418 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis BI2RE 1wk D

Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the PRC, Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”),
Americas and Asia-Pacific (other than PRC). The Group
recorded a growth in EMEA while sales in other major
markets decreased.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC decreased by 16.5%
from RMB6,170.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to RMB5,151.8 million for the Period, representing
61.6% of the Group’s total revenue (2018: 64.6%). The
decrease was partly due to weakened demand from reserve
power batteries in the PRC during the Period and partly
due to the decreased production output from Recycled lead
products.

The following revenue information is based on the customer
location for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

FEH IS ANEE R P EEMRPE BN B
RAIEM (TEMEA ]) - EM KRR (T RIES
B) - REBEEEMEARSIE & - M E M E EHIHH
HEBBM M-

AEEEFEMNEEREHEE T —/\F+ A
Z+—HIEFEAREL170.7TAEE T  H165%
ZHRAREKS1518EE T (hAEE AR ZED
61.6% (ZZF— /)\F :64.6%) °:Z B THEB D AR
HIR A B @ A B B SRR E D B B
PHEE mmE R TR

UTAEEZz—_Z—hER_Z—\F+_A=1+—
A FEERREETE S ks E R

2019 2018
—E-NE —8-NE
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
BER/
Customer location BF it Wiz FEEA (=) k# Bl
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR
PRC G 5,151,752 61.6% (16.5%) 6,170,748 64.6%
EMEA EMEA 1,425,098 17.1% 45% 1,363,606 14.3%
Americas EM 1,013,657 12.1% (8.3%) 1,105,705 11.6%
Asia-Pacific (other than PRC)  Tn K&
(T EEHE) 772,215 9.2% (14.6%) 904,359 9.5%
Total At 8,362,722 100% (12.4%) 9,544,418 100%
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Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 13.5% from
RMB8,489.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB7,347.3 million for the Period. The decrease of cost of
sales in recycled lead products was caused by the decline in
sales while the decrease in battery business was mainly due
to the average lead price drop in 2019 compared to 2018.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit slightly decreased by 3.8% from
RMB1,055.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB1,015.4 million for the Period, mainly due to the delay
in resumption of full operation from recycled lead products.
The gross profit margin increased for battery business
while decreased for recycled lead products, resulting in the
increase of overall gross profit margin from 11.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to 12.1% for the Period.
The increase of gross profit margin for battery business was
mainly due to the better control of production costs while the
decrease for recycled lead products was primarily a result of
manufacturing suspension.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 46.9% from RMB118.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB173.8
million for the Period. The increase was mainly due to the
recognition of gain on disposal of a subsidiary and increased
government grants during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs decreased
by 4.1% from RMB408.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB392.0 million for the Period. The
decrease was mainly caused by the decline in freight charges
and sales commission.
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ME12.1% © B EBHEF KL I EEHRE
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased slightly
by 1.4% from RMB269.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB273.5 million for the Period. The
increase was mainly due to more training courses organised
by the Leoch University, a training centre set up in 2019.

R&D Expenses

The research and development expenditure of the Group
increased by 7.5% from RMB111.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB119.3 million for the Period. The
increase in expenditure was mainly used for performance
enhancement of existing products and development of new
products in all categories during the Period.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased by 18.1% from
RMB35.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB41.7 million for the Period, which was mainly due to the
recognition of loss on disposal of fixed assets from recycled
lead products during the Period.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 2.3% from
RMB202.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB197.8 million for the Period as a result of less
borrowings offsetting average interest hike during the Period.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded profit
before tax of RMB158.8 million for the Period as compared
to RMB143.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 97.1% from RMB15.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB31.2
million for the Period, mainly because assessable profits from
the lead-acid battery business increased while profit from
the recycled lead products was not subject to tax during the
Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB127.5 million (2018: RMB127.1 million) for the
Period, of which the Group recorded profit attributable to the
owners of the parent of RMB132.6 million (2018: RMB106.4
million) for the same period.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current assets
of RMB65.5 million (2018: RMB718.3 million). The decrease
was mainly due to reclassification of the term loan due in
May of 2020 as a current liability as at 31 December 2019.
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade receivables, debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, cash and bank balances,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
Group’s current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,817.0 million (2018:
RMB1,963.0 million). Inventories decreased as a result of
lower carrying cost in lead during the Period.
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Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables primarily related to receivables
for goods sold to its customers and mainly comprised
customers from the battery business. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had trade receivables of RMB2,306.9
million (2018: RMB2,424.7 million). The decrease in trade
receivables was in line with the decrease in sales from battery
business during the Period.

Prepayments, other receivables and other
assets

The Group’s prepayments mostly relate to the purchase
of raw materials. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB162.0 million (2018: RMB186.7 million), decreasing by
13.2%. The decrease was in line with the decrease in sales
and production during the Period.

Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB2,009.7
million (2018: RMB2,001.7 million).

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, contract liabilities, tax payables
other than current income tax liabilities and accruals for
payroll and benefits for its employees. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had other payables and accruals of
RMB854.8 million (2018: RMB777.4 million), the increase
was mainly due to increase in payables for purchase of fixed
assets.
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Capital Expenditures

During the Period, the Group invested RMB398.1 million
(2018: RMB296.2 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB65.5 million (2018: RMB718.3 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB804.8 million (2018: RMB987.4 million). As at 31
December 2019, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB2,306.2 million (2018: RMB2,884.1 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB36.2
million (2018: RMB712.8 million) which has a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Malaysian
ringgits and Great Britain Pound, and the effective interest
rates of which as of 31 December 2019 were 1.50% to
8.70% (2018: 1.50% to 8.32%).

A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured
by pledges over certain assets of the Group including
property, plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and
trade and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 26.6% (2018: 31.9%), which was
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as at
the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

i 5 0 A

BEAREX

HR AEBRREAREIBIEET (ZE—N
F:ARB2B2EE L) RFTEERENME |
B K&t

RBESRBEER

\—E-NF+-A=+—8B AEBENRHE

EFER/ARBGLSAET (ZT—\F: ARK
7183AE L) HPRE RRITHFRBARKS04.8

BEL(ZE—N\F: ARMIT4EETL) -
T-NF+ZA=1+—8 TEENERTEEAA
R#2306288 L (ZE—N\F: AR¥2884.1H
B7t) 2R E -BRARKG2BEEL(ZE
—N\F: ARKET128BE L) WEER —F &I
Sh REEFTERITEEAR —FREE - ~EH
E’Jfﬁ‘ﬂx)&m 70 BT I T RS R P

EHE RBE=T—NF+ZA=1—
El E’J,\Kxgr\iﬁj—'—)l T1E'|.50‘%):|:8.7O% (_T*/\i
1.50%%£8.32% ) 2 fi °

AEEBHBTEEULAEELE TEERT &

EYE BB MEE HEL- wa&f’f%}*
WHREREREE - R — h¢+ A=+—
B AEENEAEELEAE266% (ZF—/\F:
31.9%) i Hﬂﬁﬁﬂiaﬁ%%iﬁ AR HRER R 48
BEBIFRAI00%ES

HAREE

RIE-NF+ZA=1+—8 TEEWEEIRE
RIABE (DT N\F HE) -

SNFFR | BEXTEBRRMERLQA

31



32

Management Discussion and Analysis BI2RE 1wk D

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of
the PRC, their principal activities were transacted in US
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion in the PRC. The value
of the RMB against the US dollars and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things,
change in the political and economic conditions in the PRC.
The Group’s product sales adopted a price mechanism
by which the currency fluctuation is basically transferred
to the customers, but the Group’s foreign currency trade
receivables may still be exposed to risk in the credit period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 2 September 2019, Shenzhen Leoch New Energy
Development Co. Ltd, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into nine unconditional sale and
purchase agreements of identical terms and conditions with
Shenzhen Zhaohua International Exhibition Development
Co., Ltd. for the acquisition of Units 1401 to 1409, Block A,
Tower 6, Zhong Gang Plaza, Expo Bay, Fuyong Airport New
City South, Baoan District, Shenzhen, PRC for the aggregate
cash consideration of RMB110,313,236.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material

acquisition or disposal of subsidiary, associated company or
joint venture by the Group during the Period.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had around 13,338
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB805.3 million for the Period (2018: RMB838.6
million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.

=

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H XEEENE
13,338fi & & - BN - B B & MIF 2 (R 1R & S B
)ERFMETE BRBEHONES s
REE MR AER S S R IREREH B AFHRA
R¥8053 &L (T —/\F: ARM%8386H &
JT) e

\n

REEBRBEN 2 EE R —TABIERTE] - A
BB LR EE AR R BN E R NEE TR RA R
AT 8| M7 RINERE - AR E SR E B
TTRAEEE RIF - PADISR I /0 THERTS R AELA
KR ANEETNAE TIREHEARZEN TIES - A
RABRENBEL 2B R BB B TH
BARTAEENFERANETIMNEARRER
B

T -NFFR | BTEBEMNERAF

33



34

Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

DONG Li (%), aged 53, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and founder of the Company.
Mr. DONG has been appointed as executive director since
27 April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Mr. Dong is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. DONG also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Mr. DONG obtained an EMBA degree from National
University of Singapore in 2015. Mr. DONG graduated from
Xi’an International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi'an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Mr. DONG also holds the positions of part-time professor
of Shanghai University and visiting professor of the Xi'an

Polytechnic University.

Mr. DONG personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.
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YIN Haiyan, aged 44, is an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Ms. YIN has been
appointed as executive director since 30 July 2018.

Ms. YIN graduated from JiangSu University of Science and
Technology with a degree in Accounting.

Ms. YIN joined the Group in 2004 as manager of the finance
department. She was subsequently promoted to deputy
general manager of administration department, general
manager, vice president of finance department, president,
and finally to her current position, in which her responsibilities
focus on strategic planning and policy development and
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration, and
leading the management in the day-to-day running of the
Group’s business in accordance with the business plans and
within the budgets approved by the Board.

Ms. YIN personally held 1,350,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

CAO Yixiong Alan (B 78 ) , aged 51, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. CAO holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. CAO personally held 500,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.
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LAU Chi Kit (8|5 #t) , aged 75, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

He retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).
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Currently, he is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) and is an
independent non executive director of Royale Furniture
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509) and Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co Ltd (stock code: 6893).
The shares of Chinlink International Holdings Limited,
Royale Furniture Holdings Limited, Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited, Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co
Ltd are listed on the Main Board.

Mr. LAU personally held 500,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.
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Dr. ZHU Ping (& &), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee as well as the nomination committee on 28
October 2019.

Dr. ZHU obtained an EMBA from Peking University in 2006
and a doctor degree in business administration jointly issued
by Antai School of Economics and Management of Shanghai
Jiao Tong University and ESC Rennes School of Business,
France in 2008.

In 2005, Dr. ZHU was awarded the professional qualification
of Senior Economist by the Zhejiang Province Human
Resources and Social Security Department of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Dr. ZHU is the chief executive officer of China Blue Sky Eco-
technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. since March 2017. During
the period between March 1997 and March 2017, Dr. ZHU
has served as the general manager in various renowned
PRC enterprises including China Aerospace Science and
Technology Group Beijing Aerospace Data Co., Ltd.,
subsidiaries of China Unicom Group located in Jiangsu,
Hebei and Zhejiang, Zhejiang Guoxin Paging Co., Ltd., and
Zhejiang Nantian Group Co., Ltd.. He also served as the
Dean of China Unicom Group Unicom College.

Dr. ZHU personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.
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Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 55, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. CHOW has over 32 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in
Hong Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises.
Mr. CHOW obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Business
Administration with double majors in Accounting and
Management Information Systems in 1986 and a Master’s
degree in Accounting in 1987 from the University of Hawaii
in the United States. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a CFA charter holder
and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Our revenue is substantially derived from batteries using
lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery market
does not grow at the rate we expect or at all, or if lead-
acid technology is replaced by another technology,
our business, profitability and future prospects may be
materially and adversely affected;
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Due to the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19"), a series of precautionary and control
measures have been implemented across the
world such as heightening of hygiene and epidemic
prevention requirements in factories and offices and
quarantine of certain residents so on. It may adversely
affect our business and overall short-term performance.
The Group will closely monitor the situation and make
timely response and adjustments in the future.

The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries
by the US government, any global economic downturn,
or changes in the economic, political and social
conditions in the PRC may have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects;

If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results
of operations could be adversely affected if these
customers reduce their orders or cease to order from
us;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on
our major suppliers is set out on page 62 under the
heading “Major Suppliers and Customers” of the Report
of Directors.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019

4)

7)

HRFEEMR S ([COVID-19]) HyEE -
554 B PRER — ZR P FARD MIE ST i - f
R TR MM AEFERHRERAR
BRAIRLERSE - BB ARENER R
EREHRBELTNZE - AEBETY)
EEBERERN BRIED KR MEE-

EXEBRMATMSEZ EBEREL — R K
BART - 2 IR K S B ~ BUAR KAt
SRR BER ATREEHRMNES M
BN KEXBENAREETNZE:

fiad AP BE R T B B i bl s 2 o > AP
MER KEXRERARAEZIANE

2
25 |

BN EERF LERUPSIGEFAE P
BRBARED WA REMALEEETPRE
MRMEESN - HMRFEPRITELIF
EAIEFINE - HPIREERE X E T

MEe:

BAEREEMSHAREFERREREE
RAARFEREERF INREE N

HERMAHBRER  AIEHRMNEER
RELERTHMTZE I RAKBETIE
HERHERI2EME - MERHEEE T
RET SR AL IR EE R X
AR - AHRMETEHERNESERH
RECCENABEZTERE [E2HERLE
Bl—fne



Report of the Directors EEEIRE

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 95 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 96 to 97.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.00 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: HK2.00 cents per share) to be payable to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company as at Wednesday,
3 June 2020. Subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, the said final dividend will be paid to the
Company’s shareholders on or about Wednesday, 8 July
2020.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out
in the headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 13 to 33 of the annual report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:
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Environmental Policies and
Performance (Environmental
Protection)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management constantly control and
monitor the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide
ontime reading is connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.

During the year, the Group provided sufficient resources to
upgrade and enhance the level of environmental protection.
Four factories in the PRC have passed the environment
protection inspection in 2018 and entered the list of approval
of industry access inspection released by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. The Group holds high
standards of operating practices and complies with the
relevant standards. The Group has stringent requirements
to maintain high levels of quality control and responsible
business practices. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units on a timely basis to
ensure that adjustments are made in our procedures and
operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important asset
and provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration to its employees to be
up to prevailing market standards. Furthermore, the Group
provides employee training programs to polish their skills
and knowledge and a number of staff activities to enhance
employees’ sense of belonging and to help create a friendly
and harmonious working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulffil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 100 to 101 and in
note 44 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB1,100.3 million (2018: approximately
RMB1,221.1 million).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 287 to 288 of this
annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. ZHU Ping (appointed on 28 October 2019)
Mr. LIU Yangsheng (ceased on 30 July 2019)
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. DONG
Li, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. ZHU Ping will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 34
to 40 in the annual report of the Company.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors Interest in Transaction,
Arrangement or Contract of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year, nor had
there been any contract of significance entered into between
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company referred to in that
section; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Number and Number and
class of securities class of securities
subject to options subject to options
granted under the granted under the Approximate
Number and Pre-IPO Share Share Option percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest class of securities* Option Scheme Scheme Total shareholding®
SREER
AERENBRE EREBRESE
SRR NERE REMBRE
FReESHE FR&ESHE
£33 BEME REHARER REH REH &it BOKREA LS
Mr. DONG Li Beneficial Owner 1,009,513,000 () - - 1,009,513,000 74.36%
£k ERBEBA
Ms. YIN Haiyan Beneficial Owner - 150,000 (L) 1,200,000 (L) 1,350,000 0.10%
gLt ERBEBA
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - - 500,000 (1) 500,000 0.04%
ENERE ERBEBA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - - 500,000 (L) 500,000 0.04%
ElE Sk ERBEEA

* *

The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
Shares.
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Notes:

Q)

Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,009,513,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. DONG Li.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 150,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 1,200,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 500,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 500,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,357,521,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Share Option
A. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2019 was 9,153,000 shares
(representing approximately 0.7% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2019 was 43,227,000 shares (representing
approximately 3.2% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 33
to the financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2019, the following person (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest

B. BREE

BEARGE2ERER-_Z—ZTF+A+H
HBEAMN—EHEARER ARFHER
RS —TEERER 2 ([EREsTEl) -
AEEN2HEEREREIS TR - ARt
MAERRRMFEEL ERMBERT
NEARESFSTRIENEMAR KR
T-NF+ZA=1+—H " BREBRETE
BT 2 mARTTERERE (AR R ERKRE
M ATE BRI AT FRIT 2RO EE B
43,227,00088 (HHERARRABINE BB %
TR AN %3.2% ) °

FE AR AT B AV RHIB IO B 75 SRR Y FESBIEE

TERRNRODEZRAR

~.

R-Z—AEF-A=+—8 THA+ (TR
EAARNERREETRAR) RRIA S FE%
B RS A A RIS % 1 5 5 15515336
BEBEMBRMOER AR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding®

Number and class
of securities”

BRRERE ERtE FHEHE RER BARRED L
Master Alliance Investment Limited” Beneficial Owner 1,009,513,000 (L) 74.36%

*

BERBEAA

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.
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Notes:

(1)  Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,009,513,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. DONG Li.

(2)  This is based on 1,357,521,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2019, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group in 2019, which were
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:
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Connected transaction which is
exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement

Leases with Mr. Dong Li and his Associates

The Company and Mr. DONG Li (our controlling
shareholder and executive Director holding about
74.36% of the issued share capital of the Company
and thus a connected person) entered into a new
master leasing agreement dated 15 February 2019
(the “2019 Master Leasing Agreement’) and
a supplemental Master Leasing Agreement (the
“Supplemental Master Leasing Agreement”) dated
6 March 2019. Pursuant to the 2019 Master Leasing
Agreement, members of the Group will lease from Mr.
DONG Li and/or his associates properties for the use
by members of the Group. The 2019 Master Leasing
Agreement is for a term of three years from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021. Upon expiry of the term,
the 2019 Master Leasing Agreement will, subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement. The
Group has entered into the following tenancies within
the ambit of the 2019 Master Leasing Agreement and
the Supplemental Master Leasing Agreement: (a) a
tenancy agreement dated 24 December 2018 with
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co. Ltd. (‘Shenzhen
Marshell”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Dong,
to lease Units E1-E4, E6-E7, E14-E63, E72-E112,
E116-E135, E138-E145 of Xin Bao Hui Building, No.
2061 Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, the PRC from Shenzhen Marshell, which
is used as the Group’s office in Shenzhen, for a term
commencing from 24 December 2018 and expiring on
23 December 2021 at a monthly rent of RMB72,012,
exclusive of management fees, water and electricity
charges; (b) a tenancy agreement dated 24 December
2018 with Shenzhen Marshell to lease Units E8, EQ9,
E148, E149 of Xin Bao Hui Building, No. 2061 Nanhai
Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, the
PRC from Shenzhen Marshell, which is used as the
Group’s office in Shenzhen, for a term commencing
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from 24 December 2018 and expiring on 23 December
2021 at a monthly rent of RMB2,777, exclusive of
management fees, water and electricity charges; and
(c) a tenancy agreement dated 15 February 2019 with
Eastern International LLC (“Eastern International”), a
company wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Dong, to
lease a building Located at 19751 Descartes Foothill
Ranchs, County of Orange, State of California, the
United States from Eastern International, which is used
as the Group’s office and warehouse in the United
States, for a term commencing from 1 January 2019
and expiring on 31 December 2021 at a monthly rent of
US$49,900 in 2019 with 3% annual increment in 2020
and 2021, respectively, exclusive of security deposit,
association fees and other outgoings.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019

RARYzhER BB T \F+_H
“t+HERHYR =T =—F+=A=+=
HEH A ARK777TL - TBEEE
BERKEE: ROHBELLRBEZERE
Z ‘A A]Eastern International LLC ([ Eastern
International )52 2 HH A -F— 1
FZ A +HA B 2 E =N 8Eastern
International & i 19751 Descartes
Foothill Ranchs, County of Orange, State of
California, the United StateskH) —IE#EF -
EREEREBE s HEREREE HAH
ZE-NF-A—BREFAUERZZT=—F
+ZA=+—BE8" :T—hiﬂﬁ/f%
49900FE TR R E_TFR_T_—F
BEHRIEN% TRIERES HEER
Hhfx o



Report of the Directors EEEIRE

Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

()

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 13 October 2015 and
entered into a new master agreement dated
16 October 2018 (the “2018 Master Sales
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will sell to Mr. DONG Li's associates, and
Mr. DONG Li's associates will purchase from
members of the Group, products including lead
acid batteries, mainly start lighting and ignition
batteries, reserve power batteries and motive
power batteries, and related parts. The products
to be sold and purchased under the 2018 Master
Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type of
products is sold by us to independent third parties
on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The 2018 Master
Sales Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending on
31 December 2021. Upon expiry of the term, the
2018 Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement.
The annual caps for the transactions under the
2018 Master Sales Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2021 have
been set at RMB138.0 million, RMB172.0 million
and RMB215.0 million respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
received by the Group under the 2018 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB59.3
million.
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(i)

Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 13 October 2015 and
entered into a new master agreement dated 16
October 2018 (the “2018 Master Purchase
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
purchase from Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and Mr.
DONG Li’s associates will sell to members of the
Group, products including battery cases, parts,
models, chargers and electronic products for the
manufacturing of the Group’s battery products
or sale as accessories of the Group’s battery
products. The products to be sold and purchased
under the 2018 Master Purchase Agreement
shall be at the prevailing market price, namely,
the price at which the same type of products is
sold to the Group by independent third parties
on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The 2018 Master
Purchase Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending on
31 December 2021. Upon expiry of the term, the
2018 Master Purchase Agreement will, subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed
for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions
under the 2018 Master Purchase Agreement for
each of the three year ending 31 December 2021
have been set at RMB41.0 million, RMB55.0
million and RMB72.0 million respectively. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate
amount paid by the Group under the 2018
Master Purchase Agreement was approximately
RMB11.5 million.
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The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
under paragraph B above and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transaction on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in relation to the aforementioned connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions.
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Disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Pursuant to the term of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 8 May 2017 and entered into,
among other parties, the Company as borrower, five of its
subsidiaries as guarantors, China Citic Bank International
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead
arrangers and bookrunners, and various financial institutions
as lenders, a term loan facility of US$200,000,000 (the
‘Loan”) was made available to the Group for general
corporate purposes including, but not limited to financing
working capital and refinancing or full repayment of existing
indebtedness due under the term and revolving facility made
available to the Group in 2015.

The Loan is repayable in five instalments as to 10%, 10%,
10%, 20% and 50% on the dates falling 12, 18, 24, 30 and
36 months respectively after the utilisation date of the Loan.

If, among other matters: (i) Mr. Dong Li (“Mr. Dong”) does not
or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the
beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least 51% of
the voting right, free from any security; (i) Mr. Dong does not
or ceases to have management control over the Company;
and (i) Mr. Dong is not or ceases to be the chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company, it will be an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, in which event all
or any part of the commitments under the Loan may be
cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the Loan may
immediately become due and payable.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Mr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2019, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is
stipulated by the Directors on the basis of the employees’
relevant experience, responsibility and qualifications.

The emolument policy for the Directors of the Group Is

determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

7.3%
27.2%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

9.3%
18.0%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers and customers.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

Report of the Directors EEEiRE

ZERDBEFET

EEMERRERTE

0)

(i)

from Tuesday, 19 May 2020, to Friday, 22 May 2020,
(both days inclusive (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the AGM, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attending and vote at the AGM,
Shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18
May 2020; and

from Monday, 1 June 2020 to Wednesday, 3 June
2020 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the
final dividend, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for receiving the
final dividend, shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited. at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 29 May 2020.
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Events after the Reporting Period

As from 31 December 2019 to the date of this annual report,
save as disclosed herein, the Board is not aware of any
significant events that have occurred which require disclosure
herein.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2019.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company hasn’t changed in its auditor in any of the
proceeding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

Compliance Statements

The Company has complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in
the mandatory disclosure requirements, complied by the
Company, are shown below.

Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company is in line with expectations of
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprise Mr. DONG Li (chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”)) and Ms. YIN Haiyan (chief executive
officer).

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprise Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Dr. ZHU Ping (appointed on 28
October 2019) and Mr. LIU Yangsheng (ceased on 30 July
2019).

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, 20
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 3 Nomination
Committee meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 1 general meeting were held.
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Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee EFeesE ZEEERERREAESHLEIENR

Meetings and General Meeting

The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board ‘JEZHFEES SR EEZCZECTLHNIKE
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting A& HYIEN (FRER ) EFHIa0T :
are set out below:

7

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/

Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number
Board Committee Committee Committee of General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting"

HERE,/ HERE/ HERE/ HRERBS  HEXE/
EX8 ENRZEE RHEZEE FHZEEE L EYN-

EENZ g1 238 E 238 E i gan
Executive Directors HITESR
Mr. DONG Li g 19/20 - 3/3 4/4 11
Ms. YIN Haiyan Mgt 20/20 - - - 11
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan ENEEE 5/20 2/2 - 4/4 il
Mr. LAU Chi Kit ABBELE 5/20 2/2 3/3 4/4 il
Dr. ZHU Ping ® KFELO 0/0 0/0 0/0 - 0/0
Mr. LIU Yangsheng @ EPES 3/20 1/2 1/3 - 11
Notes: M5k -

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 (1) BIAQARR-ZT—AFHA -+ HBTHREE
May 2019 FREo

(2)  Dr. ZHU Ping was appointed as an independent non-executive  (2) AHBEIR-_ZT—NAF+A-_+N\BEZEAEAR
director of the Company on 28 October 2019. RIFITE S

(3)  Mr. LIU Yangsheng ceased to be an independent non-executive  (38) ZBIGEEER T —NFLAZTHETEAARZ
director of the Company on 30 July 2019. BIUENITES
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Mr. DONG Li, Ms. YIN Haiyan, Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Dr. ZHU Ping (appointed
on 28 October 2019) and Mr. LIU Yangsheng (ceased on
30 July 2019) participated in this continuous professional
development mainly by reading various materials regarding
directors’ responsibilities, prevention of breaching Listing
Rules and disclosure of inside information, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder of
the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. With effect from 30 July 2018, Ms. YIN
Haiyan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged
for a term of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) assessing the
performance of the executive Directors and approving their
terms of their service contracts; (c) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; (e) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
(f) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, the latter two being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Remuneration Committee held four meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The records of attendance of committee
members, by name, at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 4/4
Mr. DONG Li 4/4
Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan 4/4

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and Board Diversity Policy which aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board;
(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Dr. ZHU Ping (appointed on 28
October 2019) and Mr. LIU Yangsheng (ceased on 30 July
2019), the latter three being independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. DONG Li is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings and performed all functions
as disclosed above. The attendance records of each member
at the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. DONG Li 3/3
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 3/3
Dr. ZHU Ping
(appointed on 28 October 2019)
0/0
Mr. LIU Yangsheng
(ceased on 30 July 2019)
1/3

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, Dr. ZHU Ping (appointed on 28 October 2019) and Mr.
LIU Yangsheng (ceased on 30 July 2019) all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he possesses
relevant accounting and financial management expertise.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2018 annual audit and 2019
interim review work, auditor’s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2018 annual and 2019 interim
financial statements, results announcement and report,
the related accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. ZHU Ping
(appointed on 28 October 2019)
0/0
Mr. LIU Yangsheng
(ceased on 30 July 2019)
1/2

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG

Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and

practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate

governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the

CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board is of
the opinion that the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The Board
is also reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources
of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 85 to 94 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB2.8 million and RMBO0.4 million,
respectively.

Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to
the Shareholders of the Company by way of (i) cash or (i)
shares. The profit distribution policy of the Company shall
achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.
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REEFAN EFEC R AREANGFEE M ER
ERGIENMEE BREERNEHE ARFEE
ST M EERREBEEN B T EE MR AR
EFHIEIFFEI R RE - B ER AN KB NAEIE
EREREERRERLTE - EFEGNAEERN
Hett ke REsEE e AR EERaR
KENETER WADRHERENEININES -

S A B B % A% 8 Bl 5 A

ARRRZBE S ER A RERHERRRE BTN
BIASNANFE R E F86H 294 B H B AZBAD R

/—&:o

E_E-NF+_A=+—HLEFE RED
INEPIZ B 2K & aJrEﬂi%ﬁ%FﬁrﬂZlS%@m\é’ﬁ
EEZRBAMIEETZRS (BEHEEERS)
BEREXM EROMEs N AARE28EET
MARKO4BETT

IR SR

ZX RAE-ERBER ([REBE]) &t K

ﬂ—JLi@()fEﬁjZ(u)Hxﬁ?ﬁtﬁ$ ARk 3
RE - ARRNFBOEBRREEIEEL  BE
MR AT



Corporate Governance Report {PEERRE

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board will take into account the Group’s financial results,
business conditions and strategies and future operations and
earnings.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.
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Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong; or

ii) by email to ir@leoch.com.
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ mestings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2019, and the Company’s constitutional
documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.
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The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating that
he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
by means of attending in-house briefings, attending seminars
and reading relevant guideline materials.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e

RS G

Ernst & Young XEETEN SR Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
22k 22/F, CITIC Tower BEPIRREZEIR Fax {8 E: +852 2868 4432
d 1 Tim Mei Avenue S AE2248 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of HETEBRFEMER AT
Leoch International Technology Limited 2RBEXR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to
286, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELEHE

BARELSE (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEEERERSR

Inventory provision

FEREE

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items. Since technology develops rapidly in the
lead-acid battery industry, the Group’s inventories were
subject to significant risk of obsolescence and significant
management’s judgements and estimates were involved
in determining the amount of provision against slow-
moving and obsolete inventories. We focused on this
area because the inventory balance amounting to
RMB1,817 million was significant to the Group, which
represented 21% of the total assets of the Group, and
the provision against inventories was made based on
subjective estimates and was influenced by assumptions
concerning future consumption or sales of inventories.
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The disclosures about inventories are included in notes 3
and 20 to the financial statements.

EREFRE ZRBEHN MG RARM IR0 -

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and calculate the amount of
provision. We evaluated the sales forecasts prepared
by management for the purpose of identifying
the slow-moving and obsolete inventories by
checking, on a sampling basis, the sales orders and
agreements, and assessing the estimated sales taking
into account the previous estimations, the historical
evidence supporting underlying assumptions and
current market conditions. We also checked on a
sampling basis the ageing reports of inventories and
the production records and sales of inventories made
after the year end. For the net realisable value of the
slow-moving and obsolete inventories identified, we
checked samples of recent sales invoices for the
value.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELSEE

FAEEREE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNEERRERSR

Impairment of trade receivables

EZEW AR E

The trade receivable balance was significant to the
Group, which amounted to RMB2,339 million and
represented approximately 27% of the total assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019. Assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables involves a high level of management
judgement. During the year, management used a
provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses
for receivables. The matrix was initially based on the
Group’s historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates
including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such as
forecasted economic conditions.
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We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and estimate of
expected credit losses (‘ECLS”).
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We assessed, on a sampling basis, whether items
in the trade receivable ageing report were classified
with the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant sales
invoices.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELSEHE

BARELSE (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEERRERSER

Impairment of trade receivables (continueq)

ESENSERE (&

The relevant disclosures are contained in notes 3 and 22
to the financial statements.

BERARBEHN M HRRMTIN22 -

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by
() evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by
management to form such estimations, including
testing the accuracy of historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information; and (iii)
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year.
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We checked the relevant disclosures in the financial
statements.
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Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

%%%ﬁ%é\ﬂﬂ%%&%‘ézsﬁﬁ

RRBEEAVBHREAK BEQ/REFEEN
i BERERFEQENEN YEERBR THE
BB EEMNEIR U RERFELEN S
it BRI BERREFAENR EEEFRIF
L& R EAMBERNER TR

ERFESHEZZEQMPETHEE &8
MBRERF AT

i

?%%EW%*Z%%EM%%%Z%?

EENEEREREMBRRIEARERD T
T R EREF SR AR B B A B K B SR PRt LA S B2 45
HATEER 2 ZBAIREEBEBERFT - TEH
WETM BT EREREMEL WEAME -
EERIHARENANRE TR EMATEETR
FEE T

BIRREB /KT ZRE L MRBRBEEES
FHEABEITHBRZ BRI B AR - $HER R
AR A B ERFF SR AR 51 A2 - B fiw BE M sk IR AR R 2R A
EEBEHER R ERAMBHRREREREZ
ERAPBRERAELORIRTE  BIEREEX
$HARMRL o

T -NFFR | BTEBEMNERAF

91



92

Independent Auditor’s Report B3 #ZEETh &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the

audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #Z BB

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B3 #ZEETh &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— A [— I S
:QE'? (=] *Eﬁﬁﬂsi
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T AR®BFT
REVENUE Uy 5 ©) 8,362,722 9,544,418
Cost of sales $HE A (7,347,336) (8,489,396)
Gross profit EF 1,015,386 1,055,022
Other income and gains E A Rz 5 173,784 118,326
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEMAX (392,029) (408,667)
Administrative expenses FTER S (273,530) (269,719)
Research and development costs Tt 8 A A 6 (119,347) (111,025)
Impairment losses on financial assets TREBEEREBESE 6 (6,013) (3,266)
Other expenses H (41,717) (35,329)
Finance costs B TS RCAR 7 (197,772) (202,356)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AT RA 6 158,762 142,986
Income tax expense Fris i X 10 (31,229) (15,846)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 127,533 127,140
Attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the parent NEVEE A 132,586 106,418
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR fE 2 (5,053) 20,722
127,533 127,140
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEEREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ELEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic HAK RMBAE¥0.10r RVBAR0.087T
Diluted e RMBAK#¥0.10T RVBAR0.087T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEZERBER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE T W EF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR%T T AR®BFT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERR 127,533 127,140
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hib2mEWz (F8)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income that RERABEFDEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss BarEMaemlss:
in subsequent periods:
Debt investments at fair value through AABEEST AHM
other comprehensive income: 2EHKNEMEBRIRE
Changes in fair value NABEEEZS 23 1,357 (2,768)
Income tax effect FRiGHix 2 31 (339) 692
1,018 (2,076)
Exchange differences on translation of MEIRINETE R E H R
foreign operations 2,173 9,727
Net other comprehensive income that REEEPEEHHESE
may be reclassified to profit or loss BamH a2 Eka
in subsequent periods FEE 3,191 7,651
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #RaZHEWEER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—BItEE

2019 2018
—EB-N1F —T-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT ARMT T AR®ET T
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ REEZ BT €
will not be reclassified to profit or loss EOBEEERN
in subsequent periods: Hizmmikzs,
(EE) -
Equity investments designated at EERANBEE
fair value through other FTAEMEE R E A
comprehensive income: MR E
Changes in fair value NAEEED 34,513 (19,659)
Income tax effect FIefis 2 31 (7,505) 4,915
27,008 (14,744)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REEZ BB S
that will not be reclassified to profit or ENOBEEERN
loss in subsequent periods Hip 2wz,
(E18) 558 27,008 (14,744)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE rEEHMEZEKZE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, (B 18) - HBRFIE
NET OF TAX 30,199 (7,093)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEERHKRZAHE
FOR THE YEAR 157,732 120,047
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the parent UNECIEZ Y =DN 162,002 08,973
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR T (4,270) 21,074
157,732 120,047
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R
31 December 2019
—E-AF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T T AR®ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER S 13 2,151,252 2,061,137
Investment properties A 14 367 14,239
Properties under development BRPYE 15 - 57,863
Right-of-use assets REEE 16(b) 190,973 =
Prepaid land lease payments T L E RRIE 16(a) - 181,989
Goodwil EES 17 10,636 10,636
Other intangible assets HihmpEE 18 670,983 615,443
Equity investments designated at BERANEBEEZESFTA
fair value through other H A 2 E RS A
comprehensive income R ERE 19 164,709 137,148
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUWEEW ¥ - BE &
property, plant and equipment RBEE X WE S 140,204 145,841
Deferred tax assets IR IEE E 31 51,293 53,001
Total non-current assets FEMBEELE 3,380,417 3,277,297
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 1,816,966 1,962,966
Completed properties held for sale RERFESE BT 21 - 15,856
Trade receivables 2 5 MW FRIA 22 2,306,871 2,424,654
Debt investments at fair value through NABEEEF AEM
other comprehensive income FHKEMEFIRE 23 134,784 164,625
Prepayments, other receivables T FRIE - H Ath FEUURIE &
and other assets Em&EE 24 162,043 186,676
Financial assets at fair value through NABEEHFTTAEBRN
profit or loss EREE 25 65,603 12,588
Structured bank deposits EBIRITIER 26 59,793 109,866
Pledged deposits [REEwRER 27 464,146 452216
Cash and cash equivalents HekREeEHEEY 27 280,903 425,311
Total current assets MBEERE 5,291,109 5,754,758
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B SN RIE N ENRIE 28 2,009,701 2,001,708
Other payables and accruals HEMEARIBERETEA 29 854,809 777,368
Financial liabilities at fair value through NABEEYTABRN
profit or loss TRAE 25 5,457 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRRITEE 30 2,269,996 2,171,301
Income tax payable FEATIEHE 85,627 86,099
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 5,225,590 5,036,476
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 65,519 718,282
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,445,936 3,995,579
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #& B &k R TE

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i & ARBT T ARBETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFRBERE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITIEE 30 36,190 712,807
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAEE 31 64,238 47,681
Deferred government grants 3 RE XS 475 B 59,770 61,187
Other liabilities HiBa & 11,549 -
Total non-current liabilities FEmBAEER 171,747 821,675
Net assets BESE 3,274,189 3,173,904
EQUITY fE
Equity attributable to owners of HARHER ABGEZR
the parent
Share capital LN 32 116,213 116,213
Reserves i 34 3,001,533 2,860,714
3,117,746 2,976,927
Non-controlling interests JEVE R 156,443 196,977
Total equity W HRRE 3,274,189 3,173,904
Dong Li Yin Haiyan
= EN g #E
Director Director
2 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-AFT-A=T-HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAARE AR
Share Share Far ~ Statutory  Exchange Non-
premium Merger option value reserve fluctuation Retained controling Total
Share capitel account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
NEE EE EXRY
RE BROEEE  AKRE BRERE Eife GlEe BB REEH At FERER B4R
RMB'000  RMBO000O  RMB0O0  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARMTT ARETR
Note (note 32) (note 44) (note 34) (note 34) (note 34) (note 34) (note 34)
i3 (Mss2)  (Msrad)  (Wskse)  (EES4)  (WEES4)  (BiERss)  (MHsESe)
At 1 January 2018 W=F-N\§-A-H 116,192 1,148,599 275,105 29,892 51,596 133,805 13754 1106408 2,875,346 170,078 3045424
Proft for the year REERT - - - - - - - 106418 106418 072 127,140
Other comprehensive income FERAMRENRE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of equity BREANBEZHIA
investments designated at A2 ERRNHERMN
fair value through other RENDREEES:
comprehensive income, net of tax nBHE - - - - (14,744) - - - (14,744) - (14,744)
Changes in fair value of debt DREBREDHALL
investments at fai value through 2ENENERRE
other comprehensive income, DREBEE NBHA
et oftax - - - - 0.076) - - - .076) - 0.076)
Exchange difierences on translation BN EBMELEE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 9,375 - 9,375 352 9727
Total comprehensive income for the year A% 2 B & EE - - - - (16,820) - 9,375 106,418 98,973 21,074 120,047
Exercise of share options fIfEERE 3B 21 310 - (163) - - - - 168 - 168
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - (1917) - - - 1917 - - -
Acquisition of non-controllng interests I EE £ 2R HE 2 - - [2571) - - - - - (2571) (5,058) (7,629)
Appropriations to reserves BiERE - - - - - 5,389 - (5,389 - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements LB & 8 B RIES i - - - 5011 - - - - 5011 - 5011
Acquisttion of a subsidiary bE-RHEAR - - - - - - - - - 10,883 10,883
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\E+-A=t-H 116,213 1,148,909 272,534 32,823 34,776 139,194 28129 1209349 2,976,927 196,977 3,173,904
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %xr

SREZEER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE_Z-NWEF+T_A=+—HLEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATRBARL
Share Share Fair  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option value reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total  interests equity
AREE ie  ERER®
R REEEE ARG BREGE i fEe wE  REEA @it FERER ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARMTR ARETR ARMTR AR%TR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Note (note32)  (notedd)  (note34)  (note34)  (note34)  (note34)  (note 34)
i3 (Has2)  (Wized)  (WEs4)  (WEs4)  (WPEES4)  (MHE34)  (WE34)
At 1 January 2019 WZE-n¥-A-H 116,213 1,148,909 272,534 32,823 34,776 139,194 23129 1,209,349 2,976,927 196,977 3,173,904
Prot for the year RERRH = = . = . 5 - 13586 13256 (5059 12753
Other comprehensive income FEREMRERE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of equity EERDABEESHA
investments designated at Ef2ERENHERE
fair value through other RENDREEES:
comprehensive income, net of tax NBHE - - - - 27,008 - - - 21,008 - 27,008
Changes in fair value of debt BAMBEEDHALR
investments at fair value through iWmeE’]F BREM
other comprehensive income, MEEES NERE
net of tax - - - - 1,018 - - - 1,018 - 1,018
Exchenge difierences on translation BN EBMEL 28
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1,390 - 1,390 783 2,173
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2EMEER - - - - 28,026 - 1,390 132,586 162,002 42100 157,782
Transfer of far value reserve of equity  BER AR BEE B ALH
nvestments at fai value through 2EHEHNERIRERN
other comprehensive income S - - - - (4,496) o o 4,49 o o o
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - (809) - - - 809 - - -
Distribution to a non-controling ARF-BHFERRE
shareholder 13 - - - - - - - - - (36,264) (36,264)
Appropriations to reserves BiERE - - - - - 6,425 - (6,425) - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements b g% &2 B IRE R - - - 2,701 - - - - 2,701 - 2,701
Final 2018 dividend paid BRHZE-NEXERE - - - - - = - (23884 (23884 - (28884)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NE+ZA=1-R 116213 1,148,909 272,534 34,715 58,306 145,619" 24519 1,316931° 3,117,746 156,443 3,274,189
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * HERBEPREFEAVUBRAIRAZEEREH

of RMB3,001,533,000 (2018: RMB2,860,714,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

AR #3,001,5683,000 (ZE—N\F: AR
2,860,714,0007T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z—NF+_A=1+—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥T T AR®FTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R X(KFMEBHREARE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax G TIba Al 158,762 142,986
Adjustments for: BT SEELFHE:
Finance costs B 75K AR 7 197,772 202,356
Interest income FB U A 5 (13,655) (12,034)
Fair value gain from financial NABEEHT ABEN
assets at fair value through TREENAAEBE
profit or loss, net e 558 5 (3,511) (43)
Fair value loss from financial AAEBEEHT AEEN
liabilities at fair value through ERBENANEE
profit or loss, net B5i8 - HEE 6 5,457 145
Fair value gain from structured ERB I IRITIF R
bank deposits AnBEEKR 5 (4,901) (866)
Loss on disposal of items of BEWXE HWEK
property, plant and equipment HREBEMEE 6 22,653 831
Depreciation of property, Y -BEREETE
plant and equipment 13 250,109 285,062
Depreciation of investment properties &Y EITE 14 11 219
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/  FREEETE TEN
amortisation of prepaid land lease T E & SR
payments 16 (b) 11,632 3,862
Amortisation of intangible assets & E 18 151,630 103,330
Amortisation of deferred 3R RE B8 #e  8 8E
government grants (5,447) (4,662)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 WA RE 22 6,013 3,266
Impairment of inventories FERE 6 6,166 2,460
Dividend income from equity EBEZRAABEESHTA
investments designated Hih 2 E RS
at fair value through other FEBHREWKA
comprehensive income o) (225) -
Equity-settled share option expenses  LARE %S 45 E 0 BB IAE I 2 6 2,701 5,011
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FB ARz W 5 (56,101) =
729,066 731,923
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &8 RERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—BItEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —EF)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥T T AR®BFTT
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD (38 m) 139,834 (88,592)
Decrease/(increase) in trade SR EIER L,/ (#m)
receivables 111,770 (102,988)
Decrease in debt investments at BEARBEESTA
fair value through other H A 2 W= /Y
comprehensive income BHEEERD 31,198 45,766
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, B 538 « E b B U I8 &
other receivables and other assets HapEERD (M) 4,416 (14,980)
Decrease in financial liabilities at fair ~ Z AR EBEE BT ABEA
value through profit or loss TREER > - 4,273
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 &~ 38 & & Z 45 1 A1 71,234 313,050
Increase in other payables and E A RIB R ERTE A
accruals 95,052 62,684
Cash generated from operations KEEBMEHRE 1,182,570 951,136
Income tax paid B ATER (20,736) (27,205)
Net cash flows from operating KETEMBFHREREFH
activities 1,161,834 923,931
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBMBHEESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 HE 13,585 12,148
Purchases of items of property, BEWE -HWELRHEER
plant and equipment (356,128) (301,286)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BB ME KREEE W
property, plant and equipment Fr{S K18 3,494 21,451
Dividend income from equity BERAABEEZETA
investments designated at fair F A 2 W am AY
value through other comprehensive 25 MR & K A% B A
income 5) 225 -
Proceeds from equity investments BEBRAARBEEEZETA
designated at fair value through H 2 R A
other comprehensive income MR E TS FRIE 19 7,349 -
Additions of equity investments EIETEEAABEESTA
designated at fair value through HEm MBS ERE
other comprehensive income - (23,431)
Additions of intangible assets EINEAE A E 18 (206,451) (217,578)
Additions of right-of-use assets/ wInEREEE,
prepaid land lease payments A T EFKIB 16 (b) (1,480) (7,782)
Deposits paid for construction of BE-EVEENRS
a property - (49,130)
Purchases of non-controlling interests 88 & JE % A% # 25 - (7,629)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wit R Bt /8 2 R - 171
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHMKEB AR 35 (2,754) =
Net cash flows used in investing REEMARES NE R
activities (542,160) (573,066)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #FEaIRE&RER
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—HItEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{iE=2 AR®T AR®FTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance RDEET MBREITRZ
expenses 32 - 168
New bank borrowings HMERITEE 3,058,261 3,007,792
Repayment of bank borrowings EEFETEE (3,682,031) (3,218,891)
Interest paid 2RHE (199,133) (201,093)
Principal portion of lease payments ~ f &N Z A4S #5 (7,227) =
Final dividend paid BRI E (23,884) =
Decrease/(increase) in structured EEMIRITHER
bank deposits mA, (3ghn) 54,974 (109,000)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BRI sR (3Em) Rk A
deposits (11,930) 87,900
Receipt of deferred government WS BGER AE KT 433 B
grants 4,030 16,890
Net cash flows used in BMEEBAREREFHE
financing activities (806,940) (416,234)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReERASEEYRL FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (187,266) (65,369)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVINR e MRS EED
beginning of year 425,311 401,042
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREFHHZE TR
changes, net 42,858 89,638
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNAESRREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 280,903 425,311
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERASEBENERDN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITH 27 280,903 425,311
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Corporate and Group
Information

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries and other related items.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company is Master Alliance Investment
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

B 755 R 3R B
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31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

1. RAIREBEEF (&)

FRANEARZER

ARBEEMBARMFNT

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ R
HWEAR ERAL/ERAH REENY BRTRARER ANAEGERAAL TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef B
% %

IHRETERERAA 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB562,649,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of
(‘Jiangsu Leoch’) lead-acid batteries

THETERARRA (NIHEL]) ZZTZEZA1-H i AR H562,649,3827T REZR SENHERRETH

EEBTERRERAR 9 May 2005 PRC* 1US$103,780,000 = 100 Investment holding and
(Zhaoging Leoch Battery manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd.) lead-acid batteries
(‘Zhaoging Leoch”)

EFRTERRMARAR ZZTRFRANA i 103,780,000% 7T REZR SENHERRETH
([EEEL])

ZENENFERRITERAR 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,001,455 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.) (‘“Anhui Uplus’)

RENERHERRITERARA ZZTRFEAZTAR hE 10,001 4555 7T SENRELRETR
([ZEHERLK])

AT HERERERAR 26 April 1999 PRC* RVB582,649,382 = 100 Investment holding and sale of
(Leoch Shenzhen Renewable Energy lead-acid batteries
Co,, Ltd.) (‘Shenzhen Leoch Battery’)

AT HERERERAR —“NMANEEAZTRA kil AR #582,649,3827C REARMHEERKEED
([RYBLRER])

RENETHEHERRMERAA 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 - 100 Leasing of properties
(Dongguan Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd)

RETMELHERERRMERAT ke Sk s s =N AR¥3,50000070 BENE

EMNEBTRERRTERAR 23 July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd)

BNELEERRITERAR “E-ZE+ACTER PE AR%100,0007T HERBESD

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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1. Corporate and Group

Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2019
TN E+ZRA=+—H

1. RAIREBEER (&)

FRANBARZESN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ ER
KWEAR EMARL/EMA S REELE BRIRMZER RAREERRAI N TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE GE:3
% %
Leoch International Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch International Sales’)
ERHEERRRA —Z2-3F+t-A=t-B %% 18T HERKESH
(BLERHE])
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ US$3,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’)
Leoch Battery Corporation ZET-FRATLA Ei 3,256,000% 7T HENRESD
([Leoch Battery Corp. | )
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
BLER (F8)ERAT “ZEMENATAR ik 12,000,000% 7 REBRAHEHRETD
([BLER])
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV US§1 S 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited ZEFRF-A=+NA RERBE™ iE REER
([Honour Label |)
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year')
Peak Year Investments Limited —E5tF-f=t+AR RBRTAHE™ 1% REAER
([Peak Year )
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BV US§1 S 100 Investment holding
(‘Shieldon”)
Shieldon International Limited L5 ATNA RERBE™ iE REER
(TShieldon |)
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “ETtEMA=+AR B 1,000,000%7C REZRMEERRES
([Leoch Battery Company |)
HRETREFRIERARA 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Nanjing Leach Battery
Technology Co., Ltd)
ARETRERRNERAR 2% 5=At+1R PE AR 300,000 HERBEED

TE-NFFR | BELEBRETERARE
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31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. RAIREBEEF (&)

FRANBARZESR (&

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
SRR/ M
KWEAR ERAL/EREH REELE BRTRAZER AAAEEERAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE GF:3
% %

FRBTRERRMERAR 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Beiing Leoch Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd)

GRETRERRITERAR “FIMF+=A1TMA PE AR %41,000,0007C HERBESY

FIBLERRTERAR 27 September 2007 PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp.)

AL ERRITBRAT ZETEFAAZTEA PE AR %41,000,0007C HERBESY

Catherine Holdings International Company 3 May 2010 BV Uss6 100 - Investment holding
Limited (‘Catherine Holdings’)

Catherine Holoings International Company “Z-ZERA=A HERLHE™ 6ETT BB
Limited ([ Catherine Holdings | )

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore 8G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’)

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. —“2-Z£MARA s 2,000,000%7 M3 7T HENRES
([Leoch Battery Pte. | )

Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 S 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch International Holding’)

Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. —E——FM@A=+-R g g REER
(ILeoch International Holding |)

ZHRTERRMBRAA 26 October 2010 PRC* HK$321,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp.) lead-acid batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Power’)

ZHRTERRIBRAT ZE-TFTAZ1+RA PE 321,000,000 7 HENHERREED
([Z@ELER])

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of

lead-acid batteries

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. —F--F-A=t+XA HEV RS 337,712,000 HEMBERRETN

HEMFEL
Leoch Batteries Indlia Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR305,988,330 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited “2-—#tA=t-H N 305,983,330 HERKEE
HEEN
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Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2019

—F-AF+-A=+-§

1. RAIREBEER (&)

FRANBARZESN (&

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ ER
KWEAR EMARL/EMA S REELE BRIRMZER RAREERRAI N TEEH
Direct Indirect
E& GE:3
% %

Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help’) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

Big Help Group Limited ( [ Big Help J) “Z—%EATNA B 18T REER

BRERRE (R BRAR 17 June 2014 PRC* RMB827,456,523 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited)

BERERR (RYNERRA “E-MERATER R AR 827,456,5237C REER

Leoch Super Power India Pvt 7 August 2015 India INR259,110,200 - 100 Manufacture and sale of

lead-acid batteries

Leoch Super Power India Pvt —Z-RENAtA g 259,110,200 HEMBERRESN

HEEL

Leoch Accupower (M) Sdn. Bhd 10 July 2016 Malaysia RM40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
(‘Accupower’) lead-acid batteries

Leoch Accupower (M) Scin. Bhd —E-RELATA ERAD 40,000,005 70 HENHERRES D
([ Accupower |)

RENERE RN AR ERAR 9 September 2016 PRC* RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy
Material Technology Co., Ltd.)

(“Anhui Uplus New Energy’)

RENERE RN AR ERAR Z2-R"ENANA R AR #5,000,0007C REER
([ZBAERFHER])

ARGREREREERARA 9 January 2017 PRC* RMB110,000,000 - 60 Recycle and remanufacture of
(Taine Dahua Energy Technology lead from batteries
Co,, Ltd) (‘Taihe Dahua’) disposed of

ARGRELRRBEERAR “2-t5-AnA R AE#110,000,00070 BEREEEHONRALER
([kABEXE])

Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. 23 January 2017 Malaysia RM1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
(‘Tele Power’) lead-acid batteries

Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. ([ Tele Power |) “E-tE-A-t=H SRAT 1,000,005 7 HENEELRETR

TE-NFFR | BELEBRETERARE
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31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+-H

1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. RAIREBEEF (&)

FRANBARZER (&

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
SRR/ M
KWEAR ERAL/EREH REELE BRTRAZER AAAEEERAAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE GF:3
% %
Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vietnam US$3,750,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited ZZ—tFAAZTIA il 3,750,000% 7T HEMHERRET
Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vietnam US$2,100,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited “E-tENAZTNB #E 2,100,000% 7T HEMBERRESN
Leoch France SAS 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch France SAS “E+5+-A-tZR 4R 100,000 HERBESY
Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH 22 February 2018 Germany EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH “2-N\§-A=1+ZH ZE 100,0008( 70 HERRESY
Leoch ltalia s.rl 11 October 2018 Italy EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Italia s.r] “E-\ETAT-H EAR 100,0008X 7T HEHRMEEY
Leoch DBS Limited (‘LDBS’) 28 June 2017 United Kingdom GBP3,516,723 - 60 Investment holding
Leoch DBS Limited ([LDBS | ) ZE—tERAZTNR HE 3,516,7235 8 REER
DBS Leoch Limited (‘DBSL") 20 October 2015 United Kingdom GBP1 - 60  Sale of lead-acid batteries
DBS Leoch Limited ([DBSL ) “Z-RETAZTH S 154 HEHRMEEY

PRC represents the People’s Republic of China which
excludes, for the purpose of this report, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan.

ok

USA represents the United States of America.

BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise standards and
interpretations issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, structured bank deposits and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 {RBLEE (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #mBE¥%E (4&)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
IFRS 9 Compensation
IFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
IAS 19 Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
IAS 28 Joint Ventures
IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
fo IFRSs 2015-2017 IAS 12 and IAS 23
Cycle

2.2
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 19 and IAS
28, and Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact
of the new and revised IFRS s are described below:

(a) IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC-Int 4

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and SIC-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS
17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles
asin IAS 17.

IFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on
leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date
of initial application of 1 January 2019. Under
this method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018
was not restated and continued to be reported
under IAS 17 and related interpretations.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies 22 S5 BRRIFESEHENWE

and Disclosures (continued) (&
(@) (continued) (@ (#&)
New definition of a lease HEZFTE

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct
the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying I1AS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(a) (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items
of property, plant and machinery and other
equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all
the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to
the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemption for leases of
low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease
basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class
of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from 1
January 2019, the Group recognises depreciation
(and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(@) (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were
recognised based on the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and
included in other payables and accruals and other
liabilities. The right-of-use assets were measured
at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before 1 January
2019.

All these assets were assessed for any
impairment based on IAS 36 on that date. The
Group elected to present the right-of-use assets
separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective
practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend/terminate the lease
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31 December 2019
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(a) (continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIE

(45

(@ (#&)

20 B BERNBSEE

R-CE-NF—A—HAZHEZE

The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 RZZE—NF— A —BHEAERT %R
at 1 January 2019 was as follows: EEAEIREEZTZENT
Increase/
(decrease)
#m, ORd)
RMB’000
AREF T
Assets EE
Increase in right-of-use assets FERREEEN 201,505
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments 81~ + th 78 & 77 18 5 > (181,989)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables FE/{~ 3R I8 - H b fEU G IE & H b & &= 5 )
and other assets (4,630)
Increase in total assets BEBEEN 14,886
Liabilities afE
Increase in other payables and accruals Hib e I8 & FEEH & AN 3,040
Increase in other liabilities Hih B &M 11,846
Increase in total liabilities BEEREE 14,886
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(@) (continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019

reconciled to the operating lease commitments as
at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

31 December 2019
—ET-NF+=ZR=+—H

DI BRRBEEBENE
G%

R-ZFE-NF-A—HZHBEZE
(#&)

W=T—nE—A-BNEERER -
T N\FtZAS T RMEERER
R

RMB’000
AR®ET T
Operating lease commitments asat31 R-Z—N\F+-A=+—HBHK
December 2018 REHERE 16,797
Less: Commitments relating to short-term 5 : SRS HAH E R FIHFABN —Z—NF
leases and those leases with a +ZA=+—HxZAERT
remaining lease term ending on MHE A AE
or before 31 December 2019 (846)
Weighted average incremental borrowing R_-Z—hLF—A—HK
rate as at 1 January 2019 MEFEEEEN X 4.75%
Discounted operating lease commitments HK —Z— L F— A —HH
as at 1 January 2019 AL 3R 4% 2 70 B R 14,886
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R=-Z—hE—-F—BHWNHESRE 14,886
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31 December 2019

—hWF+=ZA=+—H
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies STBERRIEEEIENER

and Disclosures (continued) ( F=

(b) IFRIC-Int 23 addresses the accounting for (b) EERHBREREZES -REF0H
income taxes (current and deferred) when EAESTTRES RS ERR S
tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects HRIF12REAN TR EE R (BB
the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as B ITRERBER]) - MRS
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation T (BVHAZRIE ) AR - sza2 Bl TNE A
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the PRI e TR 1 257 S0 lS LAY N B IR
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include SHE  NEHETMEENBEES
requirements relating to interest and penalties BN EREIRCHEERK -REAE
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The J’EEE()E‘%?’E LEBERENMETHBEE
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether B ()BSE BRI RIER - EigE
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments B ERER ¢ (i) BB QR a] /25 T FE AR A i A
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes SRTEEE A REVABBIEE K
about the examination of tax treatments by AR R MR R (VERNEE
taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines REERIERES - AEE D RENZ
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused ZENZREELATNASEAAT]
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; R EH 6 U EEE TE B E B TEE B A
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in S BBEAREENRBE R REETE
facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the MR AEBETHAERETCEIRGE
interpretation, the Group considered whether it WG Em - At 22 BEAEE
has any uncertain tax positions arising from the MR SRR A2 -

transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based
on the Group’s tax compliance and transfer
pricing study, the Group determined that its
transfer pricing policy will be accepted by the
tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material’
and IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continueqd)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition
of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continueqd)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition,
the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in 1AS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

31 December 2019
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet Effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards (continueqd)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

31 December 2019
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31 December 2019
—hWE+=ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, structured bank deposits and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 24 TESTTHERME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 2 -

based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Level 3 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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31 December 2019
—hWE+=ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 24 TESFTHERME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
@iy is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIE

31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 24 TESFTHERME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 - 5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating
lease) which would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 48 years.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the land
costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other cost directly attributed to such properties
during the period of construction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Properties under development
(continued)

Properties under development are initially classified as
non-current assets and transferred to current assets
under the category of properties held for sale when
the construction of the relevant properties commences
and the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and
buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on
the prevailing market prices, on an individual property
basis.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIE

24 ER = n-I_JBZ ﬁ%x (/:E

BREE (BEKRN) (H)

BRI
AR BB AER S AR FIRI0F
RE AR

BPHE

AR B E BE L E SRR K10 T
A A RO

BE

AEBENEIEAE AN ESF R A A

HERR

REBRIRABARENE10F A bFAI(E R

HHFE R 5] 3/ AR

B AR ELRSI R IBaR



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and developrment costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@ Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Prepaid land lease payments
Property
Plant and machinery

46 to 50 years
2 to 6 years
2 to 3 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
oCCurs.
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31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+-H

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continueq)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in other
payables and accruals and other liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

()

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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31 December 2019
—hE+=A=+—8

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January
2019)

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
ownership of an underlying asset lessee remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where
the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor,
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

24 TEEITHERME (&

RERHMEHMEE (&

wEirE (&)

EERARBEESTARLMEZEKEZ
TRMEE (MR E)

R HERER  AREEENERERE
NEBREERER e H T A 2HE
TR ER BYIFIEERR S E#ER
HRE A REM DB REER A EER
Bt AR EEREERIERE DR
R{ER T EEEETF

B MARNME REIBNT R RERT
NBRSR MRS (S IR SR ERSRE
RBRMBA  BBREHEEFETER
AREEARSDERBARHE REA
SEE R BIRE & AR HRARAE
B ERBRAIRI R BERT - %S
HRHMREREA R TR EEE
B3 A KA 2 ER S RS 1R TR
e

T -NFFR | BTEBEMNERAF

147



148

31 December 2019
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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31 December 2019
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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31 December 2019

—AF+=A=+-A

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

(continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurerment

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future contracts to hedge its price
fluctuation risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain industrial products for general repairs of
defects occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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31 December 2019
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

U in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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31 December 2019
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For
a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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31 December 2019

—hE+=-A=+—H
2.4 Summary of Significant 24 TESTTHERBE (&

Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued) WA (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EE& K (&)

(@)  Sale of industrial products (@ HEIXEMm
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is HE TEERNRENEEEHEER
recognised at the point in time when control of the EEPHERR —RAXNIEER
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on ¥ o

delivery of the industrial products.

(b)  Sale of properties b) HEWHE
Revenue from the sales of properties is HEMEMB SR EREREE
recognised at the point in time when control of the JERER

ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from other sources H i 2R BT 17 40 72
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis e W IRR Rt R B ROFHANER

over the lease terms.

Other income H A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using P B EIR BT R EUER AR A B e/ T
the effective interest method by applying the rate that BhEH AR R TE T 7] 5 A3 4 B AR s e i B
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts (W@ ) WER IR S BRI = S EE
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a REVFERFIRMER

shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIE

24 TEEITHEREME (£Z)

URGOBERNTR (&

AR EE R DR AIEER R, IR
RS RIEITROHIR A - E E AR FELE ANE AR
RN ESBAMAX AR NGB B BTN
HEMR URSEENR SRR RaT
EBR-RBRTREHERNEE RS EY
RERZ BB ER TAME N RIEMGT-
HARBERRMELIELE R B HY)
KR FRERM Rt E RN E S

B RE KB B ARBELTEBRBE R
FETIHRIBIGST HEBEIERIRIT 2 AT BEIE R
W E /K REEB A KB TAHA
ZBAEME 2 — 8B 1D o MIHRIB IR R IR
EREB 2 AR EERN SR ERHEL
EARRE N RS B oK B E AR SR AE
B -BRIETMARS N LRBGN B
AR IR O 2R AU EEH R
BB BN S35 -

HRARRERIFETISRER R, SRB RN
1T 55 4% 30 8 B B 0 SR B0 T e SR AR B S - i
W IET ISR IFFB IR AR MR
B RIS ETIGERBITOERT TR
MISRTESGERBREREN G AR
VTR



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”’) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

24 TEEITHEREME (£Z)

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. In prior
years, the Company’s functional currency was RMB.
As at 1 July 2018, the Directors had re-evaluated
the economic environment of the Company and
determined that the functional currency of the Company
has been changed from RMB to USD given its major
funding and financing activities were raised increasingly
in USD. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+-H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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31 December 2019
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Group
to make judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and practices and makes tax
provisions accordingly.

The Group’s determination as to whether to recognise
deferred tax liability for withholding taxes from the
distribution of dividends from the subsidiaries in the
PRC according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of distribution of
dividends. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 31 to the financial
statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019
was RMB10,636,000 (2018: RMB10,636,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

31 December 2019
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31 December 2019
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 22 to
the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

31 December 2019
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31 December 2019
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the amount of inventory provision recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB6,166,000 (2018: RMB2,460,000) (note 6).
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2019 was RMB70,253,000 (2018:
RMB83,127,000). Further details are included in note
31 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2019, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB562,002,000 (2018: RMB488,696,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.

31 December 2019
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

4.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, who is the Group’s CODM for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
does not contain profit or loss information of each
product line and the executive directors reviewed
the gross profit of the Group as a whole reported
under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group
constitutes one reportable segment. Accordingly, no
segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities and related other
segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

An analysis of revenue by products is as follows:

4.

/

REpEER

AEETERERE HAEMBEERKES
AN B A AEREE 5 ©

Il

BRI B M R o AR R SESSR AR & 0 BE A E BAR IR
AEESBF A HREIREEDE B
FAANHREREIBEEARRE ([TBRER
KE])EHER ADBEIRT» B MG
DERBE - AARAMITES (AIAEE TR
REREE) EMARD B REFHARIEAN
BRI T EREEMGNIBERER ITES
EHRBEBERVHRELEN 2R AKEE
BEM-FiL AEREERFE—ER 2%
BB AR 2D BB FY o

W55 HEEK A B RAMABNS
BEK REAEBEERBERERRA
BB 5 AR

EmEX

REmS DR DT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREBFIT

Lead-acid batteries WA EE) 7,386,506 8,069,088
Recycled lead products o] 15 4 2 971,227 1,419,052
Others HAh 4,989 56,278
8,362,722 9,544,418
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

4. Operating Segment Information 4.
(continued)

Geographical information

@)

©)

Revenue from external customers

31 December 2019
—hE+=-A=+—8

l%«( =) _\E—B & *SI' (/115

i EE

@ KESEBEF &Kz

2019 2018
—B-h&E —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

PRC* Hr B 5,151,752 6,170,748
Europe, the Middle East and Africa B ~ A 5 K2 JEM 1,425,098 1,363,606
Americas M 1,013,657 1,105,705
Asia-Pacific (other than PRC) DAME (TEERE) 772,215 904,359

8,362,722 9,544,418

* The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), for the
purpose of this annual report, excludes the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC, the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
and Taiwan.

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

N BAFRM S PEARLME (T
BOABETEEEFNTRE +
BIBPIRRITTHRE R BE -

bt s E R TR R T PRI AT o

b) FrRBEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

PRC H 2,774,521 2,859,909
Other countries/areas HMER, R 389,894 227,239
3,164,415 3,087,148

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

FRIEREEEBM DHENZEEEN
NESN AT ERER T ANMREER
THEEE

T-NEER | BETEBRENERAR

179



180

31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

4. Operating Segment Information

(continued)

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no revenue
from sales to a single customer amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, revenue of approximately
RMB1,033,825,000 was derived from sales to a single
customer, including sales to a group of entities which
are known to be under common control with that
customer, which accounted for 10.8% of the Group’s

total revenue.

Revenue, Other Income and
Gains

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

4.

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIE

FRIEEFNESR

REBE-ZT-NF+A=1+—HLFE"

WREHE - AEEREE RSB
HENO%H A L - REE_T—N\F+=H
=+—HIFE Y AR1,033,8250007CH)
KEREHE-EFPHNEE (EHeEYHE
MEZEFZLRITHINEBEEAHEE)

EAREERWEAI10.8% ©

W s - YA K W s

Wam AT T -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Revenue from contracts with customers & F

8,362,722 9,644,418
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5. Revenue, Other Income and

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

Gains (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Y

Disaggregated revenue inforrmation

For the year ended 31 December 2019

31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

5 L(I%:ﬂji Hg A R &
EFEHNWE
O WA EHAS

HE_Z-NF+-A=t—-HLHFE

Total
st
RMB’000
AR® T
Type of goods EyER

Sale of industrial products HETEER 8,357,733
Others Hib 4,989
8,362,722

Timing of revenue recognition s 22 B R
Goods transferred at a point in time REERIEECEY 8,362,722

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—T—\FT-A=+—HILEE

Total
5t
RMB’000
ARETT
Type of goods BEYER

Sale of industrial products HETHEEDR 9,488,140
Others Hth 56,278
9,544,418

Timing of revenue recognition Wy 25 T R B
Goods transferred at a point in time REEREEZE GV 9,544,418
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31 December 2019
—hE+=-A=+—H

5. Revenue, Other Income and
Gains (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

() Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

5. Wz HW AR W
(&

BEFEab=E (&)

() KZmEHES (E)

TRITRBEVARDREAM
RE IR E AR R 2 Wt 8

2019 2018
—g-nE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Revenue recognised that was FFABmERUE

MBREM

included in contract liabilities at the = &R ES -

beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETHEER

178,188 133,257

(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation for the sale of
industrial products is satisfied upon delivery of
the industrial products and payment is generally
due within 60 to 90 days from delivery, except
for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The performance obligation for
others is satisfied when control of the ownership
of properties is transferred to the buyer.
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Revenue, Other Income and

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

5. Uxs o LA R 3

Gains (continued) (#&
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
Other income and gains A PN €
Bank interest income RITH B UA 13,655 12,034
Government grants* 8T 5 B 80,794 66,610
Dividend income from equity investments 8 & &IZ A BEE EET A
designated at fair value through other Hih2E R
comprehensive income A& R BWA 225 =
Sale of scrap materials SHEER 4,942 5,552
Gross rental income from investment REMELEHEZ
property operating leases: el A@EE:
Other lease payments, HiMHEEN
including fixed payments BEEEMK 2,232 2,350
Fair value gains, net: ~RaBERE FRE:
Financial assets at fair value AABEEHFTABRZ
through profit or loss EREE 3,511 43
The structured bank deposits ERIEIRITIER 4,901 866
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary LEWB QR W
(note 35) (MI3E35) 56,101 -
Others* H b 7,423 30,871
173,784 118,326

The government grants represent various cash payments
and subsidies provided by the local government
authorities to the Group as encouragement for its

investment and technological innovation. There are no Igo
unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.

e Others in 2018 include an insurance claim received e
in the amount of RMB23,339,000 from the insurance
company for losses in inventories and property, plant and

* BT TR T IRAF 2R PI48 T AR BN &
BINEKRIB LA ASENIRE R BT 8% -
BEBRZSHAHREER IR AE

R-B-N\FEMBERA T —tF+=
ARKBEMRBFARAEN—EAKERS
NKEBHCERFEAR X BFE RREE

equipment in relation to the fire incident of an assembly
plant of the Group in Malaysia in December 2017.

AMeBREBAFRNRBRERSBARE
23,339,0007T ©
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

6. Profit Before Tax 0.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

i Bl iz A

AEENBATR N TS, (GEA) A TE

charging/(crediting): BB :
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt &E AR® T AREET T
Cost of inventories sold FTEFEKA 6,184,270 7,286,798
Employee benefit expense EBEEMAX
(including directors’ (BHEES=HE
remuneration (note 8)): (KIzE8) ) :
Wages and salaries IERFS 748,522 758,701
Equity-settled share option EREER
expenses R 2,701 5,011
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIE K 54,054 74,856
805,277 838,568
Amortisation of other intangible H b\ & E
assets except for deferred GEIER R ABRIN)
development costs 18 20,673 20,483
Research and development costs: 3 fi AN :
Deferred development costs 5 HE R B P AN 4 g
amortised* 18 130,957 82,847
Current year expenditure FAMZ 119,347 111,025
250,304 193,872
Auditor’s remuneration 2 il e 2,800 2,700
Financial liabilities at fair value ARABEEHAABRRZ
through profit or loss: TREE:
Unrealised loss REBEIE 5,457 -
Realised loss E#IREE - 145
Fair value loss from financial liabilities A 7t BB &t AfBzE 2
at fair value through profit or loss, TRABEAREE
net BE - FRE 5,457 145
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31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

Profit Before Tax (continued) 6. HANER (&)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR® T ARBFTT
Financial assets at fair value AABEEHFT ABRZZ
through profit or loss: TEEE:
Unrealised gain RER Y 2= (3,511) (43)
Structured bank deposits: ERIERITERC
Unrealised gain REIR WS (73) (866)
Realised gain RS EN e (4,828) -
Fair value gain from structured HEBMIRITFERE
bank deposits, net AaEEKE  FRE (4,901) (866)
Depreciation of property, M- BREREEITE
plant and equipment 13 250,109 285,062
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & ¥ #r& 14 11 219
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFHEEEFE
(2018: amortisation of land lease —E-)\F:
payments) BN HEE 16(a),
TREE ) 16(b) 11,632 3,862
Impairment of trade receivables B 2N GIRRE 22 6,013 3,266
Impairment of inventories* FERE" 20 6,166 2,460
Loss on disposal of items of property, & &M%  ME N &RE
plant and equipment, net* JH B /& 18 - F R 22,653 831
Foreign exchange differences, net’  SMEE 5 =58 - JF 58" 6,092 28,001
Lease payment not included inthe ~ Tt AHEGEHEZ
measurement of lease liabilities HERR 16(d) 6,856 =
Minimum lease payments under LEHETH
operating leases =EBERIE - 13,590
Insurance claim received from FLRMIBRBEWIRER A F]
the insurance company for loss B IR gz 12 B
on a fire incident - (23,339)
e The amortisation of deferred development costs and * RN A E R GFERETAGEER

impairment of inventories are included in “Cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

i Net fair value loss from financial liabilities at fair value i
through profit or loss, net loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment and net foreign exchange
differences are included in “Other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

= HERAKR] e

AREBEEDHHABENEREEEEZA
REEERFE EEVE BFELRERER
MBS IRFRE R SMNEE X ZBFRERT AR B R
sk [ B f e
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31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

7. Finance Costs

7. BEF& RN

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BTSRRI IR T -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥FIT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEF S 153,991 157,117
Interest arising from discounted bills BEIRERELENFE 42,434 45,239
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 1,347 =
197,772 202,356

8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

8. EEM=%

BIE ETRE R BFERQEHEHIZE383(1)(@)
o) OkMER AT (FEREEFZER) R
Pl EEsFNESHE O T :

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-AF —ET-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF ARBFIT

Fees we 582 630
Other emoluments: E <

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ¥& ~ JE8E & B ¥1E R 1,630 1,828

Equity-settled share option expenses DATE 25 45 B B0 BB AR A ) 2 146 185

Pension scheme contributions RINSET B 67 82

1,843 2,095

2,425 2,725
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8. Directors’ Remuneration
(continued)

(a) Independent non-executive
directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors were as follows:

8.

=EE5MME (&

31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

(@) BIUFHATES

BV IFRATEEI N ZREIT:

Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
¥e BER DEREEN Bhe
ik BYREN EXENTAL BRERX B 5 ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTT  ARETR AR%®ETR  ARETR  ARETR
2019 t
Mr. Lau Chi Kit ABGRE 21 - - % - 236
Mr. Liu Yangsheng® B DL 123 - - 2% - 148
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan BMELA 211 - - % - 236
Dr. Zhu Ping* Rerg L 37 - - - - 37
582 - - 75 - 657
2018 —E-0\E
Mr. Lau Chi Kit ABErE 210 - - 39 - 249
Mr. Liu Yangsheng BGERE 210 - - 39 - 249
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan ENERE 210 - - 39 - 249
630 - - 117 - 747

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2018: Nil).

* Mr. Liu Yangsheng passed away on 30 July 2019.
# Dr. Zhu Ping was appointed as an independent

non-executive director of the Company on 28
October 2019.

FRAAERBLIFRTETINEAM
e (ZF—\F H8)-

. BBEEER _T-AFLA=TH

B o

f o OAREEIR-T-ASTA=AR
BEEARANBIFRTES:
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31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non- (b) BITESERKHTES
executive director
Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
¥e 2R NEREEN Bfkg
e BUEN BRAHTL  BREEX HE 3 g

RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

2019 ZE-NF

Executive directors: HIES:

Mr. Dong Li RS - 830 - - 62 892

Ms. Yin Haiyan® MgHatt - 800 - il 5 876
- 1,630 - n 67 1,768

2018 —E2-N\EF

Executive directors: HIES:

Mr. Dong Li 554 - 830 - - 79 909

Ms. Zhao Huan* BELLT - 511 - - 2 513

Ms. Yin Haiyan* Mgkt - 333 - 68 1 402
- 1,674 - 68 82 1,824

Non-executive director: FHTES:

Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky"  Philip Armstrong

Noznesky: £" - 154 - - = 154

- 1,828 - 68 82 1,978
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

8. Directors’ Remuneration
(continued)

(b) Executive directors and a non-
executive director (continued)

Ms. Zhao Huan resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 6 August 2018.

e Ms. Yin Haiyan was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 30 July 2018. She is
also the chief executive of the Company.

Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky passed away on 22
September 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2018: Nil).

9. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two (2018: one) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2018: four) non-director, highest paid employees are as

31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

8. EEM % (&

(b) MITESRFIATES (&

- BELEIR T N\FAARBEIE
RRBHITES-

E Rt N_F—-NFLtA=1H
BZERRRARTER - WIHFRAR
Bl Z T -

" Philip Armstrong Noznesky £ ==
—N\FRAA-+-_HEt-

FAMETNEREZTREXLRE
BEEAMENLZE (ZF—/\F:

%) -
hEBReHMNES

FRAEEESFHEET BEME (=
TE-N\F:—R)EF HFHNFBEN L
M8 - FA Heg=R (ZT—/\F:
ZINEZ2EaTMEENT BT
T

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 3285 & B B 3,525 3,679
Equity-settled share option expenses DA A E a BB I R S 639 601
Pension scheme contributions BIKEETEIMH 22 34
4,186 4,314
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

9.

10.

Five Highest Paid Employees
(continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

hEBeHMNES (&)

B TIEEZIEEEN T EFMNES
ABINT

Number of employees

EEA™
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZTE

AR #1,000,0007T 1 2

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR %1,000,001E
A R #1,500,0007T 1 1

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0012
AR #2,000,0007T - 1

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR %2 000,001 &
AR #2,500,0007T 1 _
3 4

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2019
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=
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

10.Income Tax (continued)

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
21% (2018: 21%) on taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong, i.e., Leoch Power Supply and Leoch International
Sales. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made by Leoch Battery Company and Big Help as they
did not carry on any business in Hong Kong or had no
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong
during the year.

The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery Pte.’s
application for the Global Trader Programme on 24
May 2014 and it was renewed on 30 August 2019. The
provision for Leoch Battery Pte.’s current income tax is
based on the tax rate of 10% (2018: 10%).

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

10. FRiS®i (&

Leoch Battery Corp.Jy R EBR A - B
MREBBNEEMESH -HERBT K E T
SOEANEBCEMSHER21% (ZF
—N\F:21%) °

BEANEGH IR BB MK A E
N HETERIMETHEREHENE
ABREF REEB E16.5% (ZF— N\
% :16.5% ) 5T 1R # 4% - BB M Leoch Battery
Company X Big Helpif # A & 78 1t ST (a2
1 SR AR E E RN RN BB EE A s BREVE
I ERBUEF - HE I EHR BB FESHB
e

FNEERR-_TE—NFRA=-TIA#
EERZZE—NFN\A=+HEHLeoch
Battery Pte. B 2K E St EIMERE -
Leoch Battery Pte. BNEAFT{S R Th 3 R 10%
—E—N\F:10% ) TR R -

RAEBERPENETHERREREE
BN R SR BRI RIBETBEEE
FBHE (R-ETN\F—A—AEHER
AR 32 7 S B o B RO BT B8 1 ) B0 FE AR R
it M A% H) A TE B R 5T E
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31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+-H

10.Income Tax (continued)

10. Fri&®i (

V=1

=l

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power and Anhui Uplus RZE-NF IHELT TRETERRK

were designated as high-tech enterprises by the PRC
tax authorities and were entitled to a preferential tax

rate of 15% for the year 2019.

Taihe Dahua, which engages in qualified recycling
businesses, is entitled to a 10% deduction of revenue
for manufacturing qualified products with main qualified

raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the

year are as follows:

RN BN ERENGEE RERR S
RMit% ZEEEMERER15% °

AMBAEREAEROWER AIZEN
GEREIECERRMHEERERER
PriSHasm10% °

FRMEHAXNEIZERIEINAT

2019 2018

—B-hAF ZF)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AREF T

Current — PRC BIERRK I8 — R 9,712 18,069

Current — Hong Kong BIEAFE I8 — &% (6,575) (3,881)
Current — Singapore BIHATR T8 — ¥ N3 16,381 7,571
Current — USA BN EAR 1A — £ B 1,430 2,139

Deferred tax EERIE 10,281 (8,052)
Total tax charge for the year FARRIES HBR%E 31,229 15,846
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A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions
in which the majority of the companies of the Group are

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

10.Income Tax (continued)

10. FR1GHL (48

BASEAE D AREMAERZEER
H)ATE 11 R 51 B 808 AR B ADE M B P S
BAX BREREN R ENRIAR AN

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

domiciled to the tax expense at effective tax rate is as R
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®TR % ARETT %
Profit before tax 7t A& A 158,762 142,986
Tax at the applicable tax ~ #&Z@E AR K+ E
rates CopsTReEl 46,071 29.0 42,705 29.9
Tax concession for certain &= T B2 &
subsidiaries HE B EE (18,083) (11.4) (27,763 (19.5)
Additional deductible REHNA] R A B
research and F X
development expenses (10,541) (6.6) (6,463) (4.5)
Expenses not deductible A FIF B2
for tax 871 0.5 1,971 1.4
Tax losses not recognised 7 #& 32 %1 18 5 18 14,244 9.0 8,225 5.8
Tax losses utilised from E AR 2B
previous periods &1 (1,333) (0.8) (2,829) (2.0)
Tax charge at the Group’s IR AN EB BB =X
effective rate STEABIERX 31,229 19.7 15,846 11.1
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31 December 2019

11

12.

—h&E+-A=+—8H
.Dividends 11. 1K E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Final — HK2.0 cents (2018: HK2.0 cents) KR EI— & A%2.07 1L

per share ZE-NF:2.0581) 24,321 23,164

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,357,521,666
(2018: 1,357,431,128) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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R AEBERFE ARG
FRER

EREARBFNEB RS AT LT BERR
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

31 December 2019
—ET-NF+=ZR=+—H

12.Earnings Per Share Attributable  12. A B & @ER A AEL
to Ordinary Equity Holders of FRER (&)

the Parent (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

FRRERLEERF IRE N IBETH -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Earnings 2|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARTTEEREARES
holders of the parent, used in Bz B RREEER
the basic and diluted earnings A ABMEREF
per share calculations 132,586 106,418
Number of shares
gnig g
2019 2018
—E-nE —T)N\F
Shares dvi)
Weighted average number of AR ESRERRZT 2
ordinary shares in issue during FREBITEERINE
the year used in the basic earnings 8

per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

1,357,521,666 1,357,431,128

Po5H B — BRI AR
T

HE i 168,257 1,160,164

1,357,689,923 1,358,591,292
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31 December 2019
—T-AF+=A=+—H

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

18. 9% - BENRE

Plant and Office Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles equipment in progress Total
| &3 BEREE WAERE RE IARRE EEIR @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETR ARETT ARET T AR%TTR ARETTR AR®TR AR#ETR
31 December 2019 ZB-AF+ZB=t-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-N\E+ZA=1+-H
1 January 2019 k=E-NE-A-B 942,74 2,144,909 41,987 45,018 234,667 107,934 3,517,256
Additions HE 55,736 136,958 5,449 5,291 22,876 171,759 398,069
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) & —FEME AR (MF35) (17,941) - (238) (176) - = (18,355)
Distrioution to a non-controling ~ 2E ¥ —&FHERRR"
shareholder* (11,445) - - - - (8,071) (19,516)
Transfers e 2,945 47,240 244 162 11,384 (61,975) =
Disposals RE (13,150) (25,558) (238) (2,342 (2,443) - (43,731)
Exchange realignment B AR 2,888 1,754 157 103 163 (138) 4,921
At 31 December 2019 R=E-nE+-A=+-8 961,774 2,305,303 47,361 48,056 266,647 209,509 3,838,650
Accumulated depreciationand  Z5HTE KBE
impairment:
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-N\E+ZA=+-H
1 January 2019 k=E-NE-A-B (236,834) (947,202) (30,009) (32,717) (207,788) (1,569) (1,456,119)
Depreciation provided FRNERE
during the year (36,704) (187,081) (2,636) (4811) (18,877) = (250,109)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 35) £ &M BAR (MizE35) 1,215 - 164 153 - - 1,532
Distribution to anon-controling ~ %E ¥ — 4R BRHBE"
shareholder” 933 - - - - - 933
Disposals RE 1,857 18,152 3 2,124 448 - 17,584
Exchange realignment BiHAE (619) (402) (29 (75) (100) - (1,219)
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-NET-A=t-H (270,152) (1,121,533) (32,501) (35,326) (226,317) (1,569) (1,687,398)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+-A=+-R 691,622 1,183,770 14,860 12,730 40,330 207,940 2,151,252
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2019

—F-AF+-A=+-§

13. 9% - BB K skt (&)

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buidings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF iR R 2 WAERE HE TARE EEIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
31 December 2018 —Z-\ft-A=t-H
Cost; KA
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—tF+-A=1-8
1 January 2018 k=Z-NE—-f—-H 872,153 1,840,236 31,708 43,359 222,879 214,849 3,225,179
Additions HE 16,920 223,827 10,640 2,016 13,788 29,035 296,226
Transfer from investment BREERENE (Wi4)
properties (note 14) 26,130 - - - - - 26,130
Acquisition from a subsidiary - B AR - - 164 224 474 = 862
Transfers ELE 27,246 108,754 - - - (136,000) -
Disposals RE (662) (25,997) (697) (694) (2,543 - (30,493
Exchange realignment ERHE 954 (1,911) 7 113 69 50 (648)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1+-H 942,741 2,144,909 41,987 45,018 234,667 107,934 3,517,256
Accumulated depreciatonand Rt 7E RifE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—tF+=A=1+-A
1 January 2018 R=Z-\5—F-B (199,660) (745,414) 25,692) (27,532) (179,135) (1,569) (1,179,002
Depreciation provided FATERRE
during the year (36,244) (208,794) (4,403) (5630 (£9991) - (285,062)
Transfer from investment BRAREME (i)
properties (note 14) (756) - - - - - (756)
Acquisition from a subsidiary - B AR - = (44) @7 89) = (169)
Disposals RE 49 5,932 151 589 1,490 - 8211
Exchange realignment ERHE (229) 1,074 (21) (107) (64) - 659
At 31 December 2018 W-Z-N\E+-B=+-B (236,834) (047,20) (30,009) 32717 207,788) (1,569) (1,456,119)
Net carmying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\§+ZA=+-H 705,907 1,197,707 11,978 12,301 26,879 106,365 2,061,137
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

(continued)

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB749,349,000 (2018:
RMB672,268,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 37 to the
financial statements.

In January 2017, Leoch Battery Zhaoging Co., Ltd.
(“Leoch Battery Zhaoqing”), formerly known as
Zhaoqing Leoch Marshell Electric Co., Ltd. and a
75.34%-owned subsidiary of the Company, passed a
shareholders’ resolution to effect a distribution in specie
to its shareholders based on their respective shareholding
percentages in accordance with its articles of association.
Such distribution was effected and completed in April
2019 as a result of which 24.66% of the assets and
liabilities owned by Leoch Battery Zhaoqging , was reduced
from the Group, resulting in the decrease of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, right-
of-use assets, other payables and accruals and non-
controlling interests of RMB18,583,000, RMB13,861,000,
RMB6,561,000, RMB2,741,000 and RMB36,264,000,
respectively. As a result, Leoch Battery Zhaoging became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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14.Investment Properties

31 December 2019
—F-NEFt+ZA=+—H

14. IRE Y3

2019 2018
—E—hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Cost: BN
At 1 January n—HA—H 15,869 51,193
Transferred to property, BEREYE - -HEK
plant and equipment (note 13) = (M95E13) - (26,130)
Transferred to prepaid land lease EREZEMNTHWEE
payments (note 16) KIE (MI3E16) - (9,194)
Distribution to a non-controlling DK T —BIEERIRR
shareholder (note 13) (MI3E13) (15,308) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 561 15,869
Accumulated depreciation: ZFIE:
At 1 January n—HA—H (1,630) (2,801)
Depreciation provided during the year ~~ F AT & &5 (11) (219
Transferred to property, plant and EEEYE  REREE
equipment (note 13) (KM$3E13) — 756
Transferred to prepaid land lease EBEREENImEE
payments (note 16) FRIA (FizE16) - 634
Distribution to a non-controlling DR T — A IEERRE
shareholder (note 13) (MI3E13) 1,447 -
At 31 December W+—FA=+—8 (194) (1,630)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HAMKEE 367 14,239

The Group’s investment property consist of one (2018:
two) industrial property in Mainland China which
was subsequently measured using the cost model.
The Directors have determined that the investment
property consists of one class of assets, i.e., industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of each property. The Group’s investment property was
revalued on 31 December 2019 based on the valuation

by management. Management has reviewed the B4
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year
when the valuation is performed for annual financial

reporting.

AEENREYFBRTREAMBE —E (=
T-)N\F ME)IEME ZFWERR
EAKAEE A B - EEDRBEZMENML
B BHLER BRERENEL —BEE
(BNT M) MK - AEBEE RIFEEEE
HEE R-FE-NAFt+-_A=1t—8Y%
BREMFETEMR - HEEDRFEMBE
WIEL RIEEESFamabERR I
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31 December 2019

—F-AF+=A=t-§

14.Investment Properties 14. 3R EY) % (&)
(continued)
The investment property is leased to a third party under ZEREYERBKELHELHE —EF
operating leases. =F°
Fair value hierarchy AREBEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value TREIATEBREMEN LA AEBEFNE
measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment EEE

properties:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2019 using
R-B-NE+ZRA=+—-BAAREBEFEFRABR
Quoted

prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERME  EATER EAFTER

HwE wWARE BWARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%B18) (%2[8) (%3E) wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRn AR%®Tn AR%®TR AR%Tx

Industrial property

TEYE - - 7,031 7,031

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2018 using
RZE-—N\E+_A=+—BRABEFAEMAER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ABTE BAURE BEATAUEER
B BARE BWARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1E) (%B2[E) (%E3E) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT AR®TxR

Industrial properties

IEMXE = = 30,200 30,200
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

Investment Properties
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

The fair values of the investment properties are
determined using the comparison method by making
references to comparable sale evidence as available
in the relevant market. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location are analysed and
selected for each investment property in order to arrive

31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

14. REYZE (&

[REEREBR (F)

FRNE-—REE_FzEzRABES
BEVEEE TERANBHE=R(=F
—N\F )

BREMELAREBEIIZSREBMS LA #
LB ZHERE ERLEEAEE - REXK
RABEZAFLER SREVEHEER
PURE R R E R A & L B FETH
ffre RABEFEEMGEMEEZ LA
o

at a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market unit
sale rate.

15. BRI

15.Properties Under Development

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHEREE 57,863 40,869
Additions NE 8,782 38,595
Transfer to completed properties ERERESEEEKME
held for sale - (21,601)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HE—fEH B R R (M3E35) (66,645) -
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HB/EREEE - 57,863
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31 December 2019
—E-NFt+ZA=+—H

16.Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property, plant and machinery and other equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 46 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of property generally have
lease terms between 2 and 6 years, while plant and
machinery generally have lease terms between 2 and
3 years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of
12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
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16.Leases (continued)

16. & (&)

31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

The Group as a lessee (continued) REEERAEAEAN (F
(@) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January @ FENLHHEEMZ (R =FE—F—
2019) A—HZAi)
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: RN
At 1 January n—HA—H 178,660
Transfer from investment properties EEAKEYE (HE14)

(note 14) 9,194
Additions NE 22,934
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 210,788

Accumulated amortisation: HETEe:
At 1 January Kn—HA—H (19,899)
Transfer from investment properties EREREYE (HiF14)

(note 14) (634)
Recognised during the year RERER (3,862)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 (24,395)

Impairment: AR :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H (54)
Carrying amount: BRMEME
At 31 December R+=—ZA=+—8 186,339
Less: Current portion included B B ATER IR - E AR
in prepayments, other RIERHEMEER
receivables and other assets BVEAER o (Ff7E24)
(note 24) (4,350)
Non-current portion FERNERER 181,989
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31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+-H

16.Leases (continued) 16.1HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEEREABA (&
(b)  Right-of-use assets b) FEHELE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use REEFRAEEENREELNFEAL
assets and the movements during the year are as BN
follows:
Prepaid land
lease Plant and
payments Property machinery Total
Bt
HEXRE nE BEREH @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETE ARETR

As at 1 January 2019 R-E-LF—HA—H 186,339 14,972 194 201,505
Additions NE 1,480 11,756 - 13,236
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR

(note 35) (PB+7E35) (6,076) (143) = (6,219)
Distribution to a non-controling 21k T — A FFZRBR

shareholder (note 13) Ciak) (6,561) = = (6,561)
Depreciation charge nEER (3,796) (7,751) (85) (11,632)
Exchange realignment B HBEE 478 166 - 644
As at 31 December 2019 R-B—-HE

+-A=+—H 171,864 19,000 109 190,973

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s RZE—-—hAhE+ZA=+—H"
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying AEEETEEFENRARKE
amount of approximately RMB60,356,000 (2018: 60,356,000 (ZZE—N\F: AR
RMB50,297,000) were pledged to secure general 50,297,0007T ) MTEN LT EFRIBEE
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details BRERAEEER —RRTHEZ
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 37 to ER-BHECEREEZFHE F2H8
the financial statements. BTG ¥R &R M EERT o
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16.Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(©)

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIEE

Lease liabilities (c)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included
under other payables and accruals and other
liabilities) and the movements during the year are
as follows:

31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

16.70% (&)
AEBERRAA (F

HEERE

HEAE (GFARMENKIBERESE
A REMEE) WRAERRFEAL
T

2019
—E-NF
Lease
liabilities
HEEE
RMB’000
AR® Tt
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HMEREA 14,886
New leases WHE 11,756
Disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR (155)
Accretion of interest recognised FRE RIS IGE
during the year 1,347
Payments (DB (8,574)
Exchange realignment B 5, 38 B 166
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=-—A=+—HBMEEE 19,426
Analysed into: ok I=R
Current portion mBNER 7,877
Non-current portion ERENI S 11,549

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.

HEaENEIEE O THERTEHRE
FizE42 o

TE-NFFR | BELEBRETERARE 205



206

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EHIE

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+-H

16.Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation
to leases are as follows:

16. 15 (&)

AEBFER/EBA (A

(@ ERARERNEERBETELT

2019
—E-hEF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Interest on lease liabilities HEARGMNE 1,347
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CRAEENEER
assets 11,632
Expense relating to short-term leases 252 HAFAE K& & T HA
and other leases with remaining RZZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H
lease terms ended on or before 2R EMNEMEERENAX
31 December 2019 (included in (FEABHERA  HE N2 #HRAX)
cost of sales, selling and
distribution expenses) 6,856
Total amount recognised in profit or loss H 18 % AR K FRIB 4258 19,835

(e)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 36(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its staff quarters and office premises
consisting of one staff quarter and nine office premises
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
was HK$2,232,000 (2018: HK$2,350,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.
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16.Leases (continued)

16.

The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods

31 December 2019

—F-AF+-A=+-§

HE (&)

AEBESHBA (F

RZZB-hF+-A=+—HB BREAEH
RIBEEMP 2 TR HHKE S HE N RYUCK

under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants ARSI T
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Within one year —F A 3,936 3,535
After one year but within two years —F AL EMEUR 3,697 1,525
After two years but within three years ~ MF LA FEE=F AR 3,685 1,148
After three years but within four years ~ =& LA F{EPUF AR 1,134 1,143
After four years but within five years WENR EEBRFAA 1,131 1,125
After five years BEFE 10,874 11,960
24,457 20,436
17.Goodwill 17. 8=
RMB’000
ARBETT
Cost and net carrying amount: 7R K B B 3 -
At 1 January 2018 W-—E—N\F—HB—8 8,699
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui — KT B A A 1,937
At 31 December 2018, R-B—-N\FE+A=+—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —T-hEFE-A—AK
—E-NAFt+=ZA=+—H 10,636
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31 December 2019

—hE+=A=+—B
17.Goodwill (continued) 17. 828 (&
Impairment testing of goodwiill EERENR

BREBAMHRENREC I EERERE
EXEM([REEEBN D IERERR -

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) for impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to ZEReEABUCHEREBENT
CGUs as follows:

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

Accupower Accupower 8,660 8,660
Taihe Dahua RN K ZE 39 39
DBSL DBSL 1,937 1,937
Total st 10,636 10,636

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% (2018: 3%) is determined by considering
both internal and external factors relating to the CGUs.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are 15% (2018: 15%) for Accupower, 20% (2018: 20%)
for Taihe Dahua and 11% (2018: 11%) for DBSL.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.
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31 December 2019
—T-NF+-A=+—H

18.0ther Intangible Assets 18. Hith | & =
Deferred
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
k13
kg GRS BFBR R [l F-by

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETR  ARBTRT  ARETR  ARETL  ARETR

31 December 2019: “ET-NE+ZA=+-H:
Cost at 1 January 2019, RZE-n&—A—-BHKE:

net of accumulated a